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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statem#mds constitute "forwardboking statements” within the meaning of the Pev@ecuritie
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statementsegp@n a number of places, including Item 1. "Bass" Item 3. "Legal Proceedings" .
Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis ndR¢ial Condition and Results of Operations." Ssteltlements can be identified by the
of forwarddooking terminology such as "believes", "expectshay”, "estimates”, "will", "should", "plans" or tdicipates" or the negati
thereof or other variations thereon or comparabtminology, or by discussions of strategy. You eaationed that any such forwalmbking
statements are not guarantees of future performandenvolve significant risks and uncertaintiesd ahat actual results may vary materi
from those discussed in the forwdobking statements as a result of various factbhese factors include the effectiveness of managés
strategies and decisions, general economic andcdassiconditions, developments in technology, newnodified statutory or regulatc
requirements and changing prices and market comditiThis report identifies other factors that doeduse such differences. We cannot a
you that these are all of the factors that couldseaactual results to vary materially from the fars-looking statements. We assume
obligation and do not intend to update these fodwaoking statements.

PART |

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains, in adufitito historical information, forwardboking statements that involve risks

uncertainties. DXP Enterprises, Inc.'s actual réswaould differ materially from those discussedhia forwardiooking statements. Factors tl
could cause or contribute to such differences idelubut are not limited to, those discussed in liBss", "Risk Factors", "Managemel
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition aRdsults of Operations" and elsewhere in this AnrRegbort on Form 1-K. Unless th
context otherwise requires, references in this Ahmeport on Form 10 to the "Company" or "DXP" shall mean DXP Entegas, Inc.,
Texas corporation, together with the Company's islidnges.

ITEM 1. Business

DXP Enterprises, Inc. ("DXP" or the "Company"), ex@s corporation, was incorporated in 1996, toheesticcessor to a company founde
1908. Since our predecessor company was foundedhawe primarily been engaged in the business dfililising maintenance, repair ¢
operating ("MRO") products, equipment and servioeirtdustrial customers. We are organized into tegnsents: MRO and Electric
Contractor. Sales and operating income for 20084 2ihd 2005, and identifiable assets at the clbsedah years for our business segment
presented in Note 12 of the Notes to the Consdaiti&inancial Statements.

MRO Segment

The MRO segment provides MRO products, equipmedtiategrated services, including engineering exgerand logistics capabilities,
industrial customers. We provide a wide range ofMBroducts in the fluid handling equipment, bearipgwer transmission equipme
general mill, safety supply and electrical produzsegories. We offer our customers a single soofdategrated services and supply or
efficient and competitive basis by being a fitist- distributor who can purchase products direftbm the manufacturer. We also pron
integrated services such as system design, falomcanstallation, repair and maintenance for austomers. We offer a wide range of indus
MRO products, equipment and services through a ttmgontinuum of customized and efficient MRO $iolos, ranging from tradition
distribution to fully integrated supply contract$ie integrated solution is tailored to satisfy oustomers' unique needs.

The industrial distribution market is highly fragnted. Based on 2004 sales as reported by industirgas, we were the 29th largest distrib
of MRO products in the United States. Most indasttustomers currently purchase their industriglpdies through numerous local distribut
and supply companies. These distributors genepatlyide the customer with repair and maintenancdcss, technical support and applica
expertise with respect to one product categorydiets typically are purchased by the distributarrisale directly from the manufacturer
warehoused at distribution facilities of the distiior until sold to the customer. The customer &tpically will purchase an amount of prod
inventory for its near term anticipated needs donteshose products at its industrial site un#l groducts are used.

We believe that the current distribution systemifatustrial products in the United States createfficiencies at both the customer and
distributor level through excess inventory requiests and duplicative cost structures. To competeeraffectively, our customers and of
users of MRO products are seeking ways to enhafficeeacies and lower MRO product and procuremesgts. In response to this custo
desire, three primary trends have emerged in tthestnial supply industry



e Industry Consolidationindustrial customers have reduced the number dilgrpelationships they maintain to lower totatghasing
costs, improve inventory management, assure censigthigh levels of customer service and enhaneehasing power. This focus on
fewer suppliers has led to consolidation within fifagymented industrial distribution industry.

o Customized Integrated Servides industrial customers focus on their core martuféreg or other production competencies, they
increasingly are demanding customized integrat@wises, ranging from value-added traditional distiion to integrated
supply and system design, fabrication, installatiod repair and maintenance services.

o Single Source, First-Tier Distributio\s industrial customers continue to address castatoment, there is a trend toward
reducing the number of suppliers and eliminatindtiple tiers of distribution. Therefore, to loweverall costs to the MRO
customer, some MRO distributors are expanding th@iduct coverage to eliminate second-tier distdtsiand the difficulties
associated with alliances.

We currently serve as a firer distributor of more than 1,000,000 items ofiethmore than 45,000 are stock keeping units ("SKs use
primarily by customers engaged in the general mastufing, oil and gas, petrochemical, service amair and wood products industries. O
industries served by our MRO segment include minganstruction, chemical, municipal, food and bagerand pulp and paper. Our M
products include a wide range of products in thé&lfhandling equipment, bearing, power transmisgiguipment, general mill, safety prodt
and electrical products. Our products are distedutom 48 service centers, including two distribtcenters, primarily located in the ro
mountain, mid-western, southeastern and southwestgions of the United States.

Our fluid handling equipment line includes a futld of:
o centrifugal pumps for transfer and process serapgdications, such as petrochemicals, refining@nde oil production;
o rotary gear pumps for low- to medium-pressure serapplications, such as pumping lubricating aild ather viscous liquids;
o plunger and piston pumps for high-pressure sei®ications such as salt water injection and cailpipeline service; and
o air-operated diaphragm pumps.

We also provide various pump accessories. Our mggmnoducts include several types of mounted anmdaumted bearings for a variety
applications. The hose products we distribute iela large selection of industrial fittings andirdess steel hoses, hydraulic hoses, T¢
hoses and expansion joints, as well as hoses famiclal, petroleum, air and water applications. i&rithute seal products for downhc
wellhead, valve and completion equipment to oiffiservice companies. The power transmission preduetdistribute include speed reduc
flexible-coupling drives, chain drives, sprockets, gearayegors, clutches, brakes and hoses. We offer adbrange of general mill suppli
such as abrasives, tapes and adhesive productsigsoand lubricants, cutting tools, fasteners,chimols, janitorial products, pneumatic tc
and welding equipment. Our safety products inclage and face protection products, first aid prosiulsand protection products, hazarc
material handling products, instrumentation angbirasory protection products. We distribute a broadge of electrical products, such as"
conduit, wiring devices, electrical fittings andXes, signaling devices, heaters, tools, switch ,gkginting, lamps, tape, lugs, wire nt
batteries, fans and fuses.

In addition to distributing MRO products, we progithnovative pumping solutions. DXP provides engiirgy, fabrication and technical des
to meet the capital equipment needs of our custeni@KP provides these solutions by utilizing mawctdeer authorized equipment ¢
certified personnel. Pump packages require MROQ@EWM equipment and parts such as pumps, motors alwvés; and consumable prodt
such as welding supplies. DXP leverages its MR@iieries and breadth of authorized products to tdhe total cost and maintain the que
of our innovative pumping solutions.

SmartSourcé™ | an integrated supply program, allows a more &ffe@nd efficient way to manage the customer'plughain needs for MR
products. The program allows the customer to tearall or part of their supply chain needs to DXB,the customer can focus on their
business. SmartSouré¥ effectively lowers costs by outsourcing purchasimggounting and osite supply/warehouse management to [
which reduces the duplication of effort by the omsér and supplier. DXP has a broad range of fiestproducts to support a succes
integrated supply offering. The program providegraductive, measurable solution to reduce costsrehmline procurement and sourt
operations.

Our operations managers support the sales effortaigh direct customer contact and manage theteffufr the outside and direct se
representatives. We have structured compensatiprotade incentives to our sales representativesugh the use of commissions, to incr
sales. Our outside sales representatives focusuddirty longterm relationships with customers and, throughrtipedoduct and indust
expertise, providing customers with product appicca engineering and after-tleade services. The direct sales representativegsosufhe
outside sales representatives and are responsiblentering product orders and providing technsgpport with respect to our produ
Because we offer a broad range of products, owideiand direct sales representatives are ablgetoheir existing customer relationships
respect to one product line to crasal our other product lines. In addition, geogtiagdbcations in which certain products are sold adse
being utilized to sell products not historicalldat such locations. As we expand our productsliard geographical presence through h
experienced sales representatives, we assesspbeunties and appropriate timing of introducingséing products to new customers and
products to existing customers. Prior to implenmensuch crosselling efforts, we provide the appropriate satagiing and product expert
to our sales force



Unlike many of our competitors, we market our pretduprimarily as a firstier distributor, generally procuring products difg from the
manufacturers, rather than from other distributé&is a firsttier distributor, we are able to reduce our cust@msts and improve efficienc
in the supply chain.

We believe we have increased our competitive adggnthrough our traditional and integrated suppbgmms, which are designed to add
the customer's specific product and procuremerdsié&'e offer our customers various options forithegration of their supply needs, ranc
from serving as a single source of supply for akpecific lines of products and product categotgesffering a fully integrated supply packi
in which we assume the procurement and managemantidns, including ownership of inventory, at th@stomer's location. Our unic
approach to integrated supply allows us to desigrogram that best fits the needs of the custoRFmrthose customers purchasing a numb
products in large quantities, the customer is #&bleutsource all or most of those needs to us.cHstomers with smaller supply needs, we
able to combine our traditional distribution capiéies with our broad product categories and adednardering systems to allow the custc
to engage in one-stop shopping without the commitmequired under an integrated supply contract.

We acquire our products through numerous origiggligment manufacturers. We are authorized to Oistei the manufacturers' product:
specific geographic areas. All of our distributeunthorizations are subject to cancellation by tle@wufiacturer upon ongear notice or less. O
manufacturer provided pump products that accountafiproximately 14% of our revenues. No other mactuirer provided products tl
accounted for 10% or more or our revenues. We \eelibat alternative sources of supply could be iobthin a timely manner if al
distribution authorization were canceled. Accordimgve do not believe that the loss of any oneritiigtion authorization would have a mate
adverse effect on our business, financial conditmmn results of operations. Representative manufaxguof our products inclu
BACOU/DALLOZ, Baldor Electric, Dodge/Reliance, Emen, Falk, G&L, Gates, Gould's, INA/Fag Bearing,Ctass Rainfair Safe
Products, Martin Sprocket, National Oilwell, Nortédbrasives, NTN, Rexnord, SKF, T. B. Woods, 3M, Ken, Torrington/Fafnir, Tyc
Union Butterfield, Viking and Wilden.

At December 31, 2005, the MRO Segment had 51%ifa#-employees.
Electrical Contractor Segment

The Electrical Contractor segment was formed in81@8h the acquisition of substantially all of thesets of an electrical supply business.
Electrical Contractor segment sells a broad rarfgelextrical products, such as wire conduit, wiridgvices, electrical fittings and box
signaling devices, heaters, tools, switch geahtilig, lamps, tape, lugs, wire nuts, batteriessfand fuses, to electrical contractors.
segment has one owned warehouse/sales facilityeimphis, Tennessee.

We acquire our products through numerous origiggligment manufacturers. We are authorized to Oistei the manufacturers' product:
specific geographic areas. All of our distribut@aathorizations are subject to cancellation by tleeufiacturer upon ongear notice or less. |
one manufacturer provides products that accountl@8% or more of our revenues. We believe that m@étttre sources of supply could
obtained in a timely manner if any distributiontauization were canceled. Accordingly, we do ndidve that the loss of any one distribui
authorization would have a material adverse eftectour business, financial condition or resultsopérations. Significant vendors inclt
CutlerHammer, Cooper, Killark, 3M, General Electric antlie’l. To meet prompt delivery demands of its costos, this segment mainta
large inventories. The majority of sales are onnopecount.

At December 31, 2005, the Electrical Contractonseigt had 9 full-time employees.
Competition

Our business is highly competitive. In the MRO seginwve compete with a variety of industrial supgistributors, many of which may he
greater financial and other resources than we dmyMf our competitors are small enterprises geliimcustomers in a limited geographic &
We also compete with larger distributors that pdevintegrated supply programs and outsourcing @esvéimilar to those offered through
SmartSource program, some of which might be abkupply their products in a more efficient and esfé¢ctive manner than we can prov
We also compete with direct mail distributors, Engarehouse stores and, to a lesser extent, mamgiesc While many of our competit
offer traditional distribution of some of the pradgroupings that we offer, we are not aware of m@jor competitor that offers on a ndirec
mail basis a product grouping as broad as ouriaffeFurther, while certain directail distributors provide product offerings as lit@es our:
these competitors do not offer the product appbcatengineering and after-tlsale services that we provide. In the Electricaht@arto
segment we compete against a variety of supplieeteotrical products, many of which may have geeéinancial and other resources thar
do.

Insurance

We maintain liability and other insurance that vedidve to be customary and generally consistertt imdustry practice. We retain a portior
the risk for medical claims, general liability apdoperty losses. The various deductibles per osuramce policies generally do not exc
$200,000 per occurrence. There are also certdis fis which we do not maintain insurance. Thene lsa no assurance that such insurance
be adequate for the risks involved, that coveragid will not be exceeded or that such insurandeapply to all liabilities. The occurrence
an adverse claim in excess of the coverage lihdswe maintain could have a material adverse effleour financial condition and results
operations. The premiums for insurance have ineceagnificantly over the past three years. Théadrcould continue. Additionally, we i
partially selfinsured for our group health plan. The cost ofrokafor the group health plan has increased ovepdlsethree years. This tren
expected to continu



Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

We are subject to various laws and regulationging/ao our business and operations, and varioathand safety regulations as establishe
the Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

Certain of our operations are subject to fedettaltesand local laws and regulations controlling discharge of materials into or otherw
relating to the protection of the environment. Alligh we believe that we have adequate proceduresnply with applicable discharge ¢
other environmental laws, the risks of accidentaitamination or injury from the discharge of colie#d or hazardous materials and chem
cannot be eliminated completely. In the event ahsa discharge, we could be held liable for any alges that result, and any such liab
could have a material adverse effect on us. Wenareurrently aware of any situation or conditibattwe believe is likely to have a mate
adverse effect on our results of operations omféfedl condition.

Employees
At December 31, 2005, we had 528 full-time empley&®e believe that our relationship with our empley is good.
Available Informatior

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly RepomsFmrm 10-Q, Current Reports on FornK8and amendments to those reports file
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSeeurities Exchange Act of 1934, are availableugh our Internet website www.dxpe.c
as soon as reasonably practicable after we eléctibnfile such material with, or furnish it tché Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

The following is a discussion of significant riskcfors relevant to DXP's business that could agWeedfect its financial condition or results
operations.

Our future results will be impacted by our abilityimplement our growth strategy.

Our future results will depend in part on our sscen implementing our internal growth strategy,ickhincludes expanding our exist
geographic areas and adding new customers. Odtyataolimplement this strategy will depend on ourcsess in selling more to exist
customers, acquiring new customers, hiring qualiales persons, and marketing integrated fornssijoly management such as those t
pursued by us through our SmartSource program.oAgh we intend to increase sales and product offsrio existing customers and rec
costs through consolidating certain administrasind sales functions, there can be no assurance¢hatll be successful in these efforts.

Our business has substantial competition and coitigretould adversely affect our results.

Our business is highly competitive. We compete \aithariety of industrial supply distributors, sowmfewhich may have greater financial
other resources than us. Although many of our ti@til distribution competitors are small entergsisselling to customers in a limi
geographic area, we also compete with larger Higiors that provide integrated supply programs saghhose offered through outsourt
services similar to those that are offered by ana@Source program. Some of these large distributay be able to supply their products
more timely and costfficient manner than us. Our competitors includtead mail suppliers, large warehouse stores amd, kesser extel
certain manufacturers. Competitive pressures cadiersely affect DXP's sales and profitability.

The loss of or the failure to attract and retairylgersonnel could adversely impact our resultspefrations.

We will continue to be dependent to a significaxteat upon the efforts and ability of David R. lgttour Chairman of the Board, President
Chief Executive Officer. The loss of the servicédv. Little or any other executive officer of o@ompany could have a material adv
effect on our financial condition and results oemtions. We do not maintain keyan life insurance on the life of Mr. Little or dme lives o
our other executive officers. In addition, our #@bhilto grow successfully will be dependent upon ability to attract and retain qualifi
management and technical and operational persoiihel.failure to attract and retain such personddcouaterially adversely affect c
financial condition and results of operations.

The loss of any key supplier could adversely affed®'s sales and profitability.

We have distribution rights for certain producteknand depend on these distribution rights fortestsuntial portion of our business. Many
these distribution rights are pursuant to contriwds are subject to cancellation upon little ompmi@r notice. Although we believe that we cc
obtain alternate distribution rights in the evehsoch a cancellation, the termination or limitatioy any key supplier of its relationship v
our company could result in a temporary disruptisnour business and, in turn, could adversely affesults of operations and finan
condition.

A slowdown in the economy could negatively impa¢®B sales growtt



Economic and industry trends affect DXP's businB&snand for our products is subject to economindseaffecting our customers and
industries in which they compete in particular. Mani these industries, such as the oil and gassingluare subject to volatility while othe
such as the petrochemical industry, are cyclicdl materially affected by changes in the economya#ssult, demand for our products c«
be adversely impacted by changes in the marketaroéustomers.

Interruptions in the proper functioning of our imfieation systems could disrupt operations and cdanseeases in costs and/or decrease
revenues.

The proper functioning of DXP's information systeigisritical to the successful operation of ouribass. Although DXP's information syste
are protected through physical and software safeéiguand remote processing capabilities exist, médion systems are still vulnerable
natural disasters, power losses, telecommunicégitures and other problems. If critical informatisystems fail or are otherwise unavaile
DXP's ability to process orders, identify busineggportunities, maintain proper levels of inventsrieollect accounts receivable and
expenses could be adversely affected.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable
ITEM 2. Properties

We own our headquarters facility in Houston, Texasich has 45,000 square feet of office space.MR® segment owns or leases g vice
center facilities located in Georgia, lllinois, Lisiana, Maryland, Montana, New Mexico, Ohio, Oklatey Tennessee, Texas, and Wyon
The Electrical Contractor segment owns one semcger facility in Tennessee. These owned fadglitenge from 2,500 square feet to 138
square feet in size. We lease facilities for tegererally ranging from one to five years. The ldafseilities range from 3,200 square fee
53,441 square feet in size. The leases providpdaodic specified rental payments and certaindsase renewable at our option. We bel
that our facilities are suitable and adequateHerrteeds of our existing business. We believeithlae leases for any of our facilities were
renewed, other suitable facilities could be leas@ti no material adverse effect on our businesmritial condition or results of operatic
Two of the facilities owned by us are pledged touse our indebtedness.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

On July 22, 2004, DXP and Ameron International @oagion, DXP's vendor of fiberglass reinforced pipere sued in the Twenfysurtt
Judicial District Court, Parish of Jefferson, Staté.ouisiana by BP America Production Company rdun the failure of Bondstrand PSX J
pipe, a recently introduced type of fiberglass fiiced pipe which had been installed on four engrgduction platforms. Plaintiff alleg
negligence, breach of contract, warranty and thatabes exceed $20 million. DXP believes the fadluvere caused by the failure of the |
itself and not by work performed by DXP. We intandvigorously defend these claims. Our insurancearahas agreed, under a reservatic
rights to deny coverage, to provide a defense ag#iese claims. The maximum amount of our inswaawerage, if any, is $6 million. Unt
certain circumstances our insurance may not cdwerctaim.

In 2003, we were notified that we had been suedaious state courts in Nueces County, Texas. Wadve suits allege personal inji
resulting from products containing asbestos allggsdld by us. The suits do not specify what praduar the dates we allegedly sold
products. Discovery is in the very early stageshmse suits. Two of our insurance carriers, undesarvation of rights to deny coverage,
paying legal fees for our defense against the daidne of these carriers, while paying our ashedtdsnse costs, has filed a suit asking
courts for a judgment as to whether or not theiears liable for the asbestos claims. We intendigmorously defend our claim for covera
The plaintiffs' attorney has agreed to settlevadlive suits for a nominal amount to be paid byiogurance carriers.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
PART I
ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Retat Stockholder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
Our common stock trades on The Nasdaq SmallCapéflarider the symbol "DXPE".

The following table sets forth on a per share btsishigh and low sales prices for our common stxkeported by Nasdaq for the per

indicated.
High ’7’ Low ‘
[




2004

First Quarter $6.49 $3.26
Second Quarter $5.46 $ 3.66
Third Quarter $5.82 $3.76
Fourth Quarter $5.49 $4.17
2005

First Quarter $5.83 $4.41
Second Quarter $8.50 $4.64
Third Quarter $24.83 $6.54
Fourth Quarter $26.30 $12.21

On March 6, 2006 we had approximately 652 holdéreaord for outstanding shares of our common stock

We anticipate that future earnings will be retainedinance the continuing development of our bes@ In addition, our bank credit faci
prohibits us from declaring or paying any dividerisother distributions on our capital stock excieptthe monthly $0.50 per share divid:
on our Series B convertible preferred stock, whdofounts to $90,000 in the aggregate per year. Aaugly, we do not anticipate paying ¢
dividends on our common stock in the foreseealileéu The payment of any future dividends will béhee discretion of our Board of Direct
and will depend upon, among other things, futureiegs, the success of our business activitiesyladgry and capital requirements,

lenders, our general financial condition and genewainess conditions.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected historical consolidated financial daforth below for each of the years in the figar period ended December 31, 200E
been derived from our audited consolidated findretEtements. This information should be read imwaction with "Management's Discuss
and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultOpferations" and the consolidated financial statésnand notes thereto included elsew

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003 B 2004 2005

(in thousands, except per share amounts
Consolidated Statement of Earnings Data: B
Sales $174,429 $ $ 150,683 B $ 160,585 $ 185,364

148,106
Gross Profit 43,805 37,984 38,549 B 39,431 49,714
Operating income 4,034 4,117 4,309 B 5,209 9,404
Income before income taxes 1,600 2,633 3,197 B 4,384 8,615




Net income 929 1,619 2,069 2,780 5,467

Per share amounts

Basic earnings per common share $0.21 $0.38 $0.49 $0.67 $1.24
Common shares outstanding 4,072 B 4,072 B 4,072 B 4,027 [ 4,349
Diluted earnings per share $0.21 B $0.36 $0.42 B $0.50 B $0.94
Common and common equivalent shares 4,503 4,555 4,920 5,509 5,789

outstanding

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data As of December 31,

2001 B 2002 B 2003 B 2004 [ 2005
Total assets $ 57,588 B $ 49,248 $ 48,375 B $ 48,283 B $72,920
Long-term debt obligations 22,864 23,486 16,675 B 14,925 25,109
Shareholders' equity 8,323 B 8,087 B 10,076 B 12,876 B 19,589

ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should belreaconjunction with the Consolidated Financiaht®ments and related notes contal
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

General Overview

Our products and services are marketed in at lEastates to over 25,000 customers that are engagedariety of industries, many of wh
may be countercyclical to each other. Demand farpraducts generally is subject to changes in thddd States and global economy
economic trends affecting our customers and thasimnigés in which they compete in particular. Certai these industries, such as the oil
gas industry, are subject to volatility while othesuch as the petrochemical industry and the rani&in industry, are cyclical and materi
affected by changes in the United States and glebahomy. As a result, we may experience changeemmand within particular marke
segments and product categories as changes ocour customers' respective markets. During 2008 petformance was impacted negati
by the economic downturn, particularly the downtirmlomestic manufacturing. All of our increasesales and gross profit for 2003 compi
to 2002 was due to increased sales of productsffshore energy production. Our employee headcdenteased by over ten percent du
2003 as we worked to bring our cost structureria lvith our sales. During 2004 the economy impro@@a employee headcount decrease
approximately 1% during 2004. The majority of tH#2 sales increase came from increased sales dfiggeofor offshore energy product
and general manufacturing. During 2005 the genscahomy and the oil and gas exploration and pragludiusiness continued to impro
Our employee headcount increased by 17.9% as & mstwo acquisitions and hiring additional persehto support increased sales.

majority of the 2005 sales increase came from adhmsed increase in sales of pumps, bearingsy geielucts and mill supplies to custon
engaged in oilfield service, oil and gas produgctionning, electricity generation and petrochemipedcessing. Sales by the two busine
acquired in 2005 accounted for $7.3 million of ##1.8 million 2005 sales increase.

Our sales growth strategy in recent years has &tos internal growth. Key elements of our salestesgy include leveraging existing custo
relationships by cross-selling new products, expangroduct offerings to new and existing customersd increasing businesstasines
solutions using system agreements and SmartS&lfrselutions for our integrated supply customers. Wieasntinue to review opportuniti
to grow through the acquisition of distributors asttier businesses that would expand our geogrdpkadth and/or add additional prod
and services. Our results will depend on our sicaegxecuting our internal growth strategy andth® extent we complete any acquisitit
our ability to integrate such acquisitions effeetj

Our strategies to increase productivity includesmtidated purchasing programs, centralizing prodiigtribution centers, centralizing cert
customer service and inside sales functions, ctingeselected locations from full warehouse andamusr service operations to DXP sen
centers, and using information technology to inseeamployee productivity.

Results of Operations




Years Ended December 31,
2003 % 2004 % 2005 %
(in millions, except percentages)

Sales $150.7 100.0 $160.6 100.0 $185.4 100.0
Cost of sales 112.2 74.4 121.2 75.5 135.7 73.2
Gross profit 385 25.6 394 245 49.7 26.8
Selling, general and administrative expense 34.2 22.7 34.2 21.3 40.3 21.7
Operating income 4.3 2.9 5.2 3.2 9.4 5.1
Interest expense 1.2 0.8 0.9 0.6 1.0 0.5
Other income and minority interest (0.1) - (0.1) (0.1) 0.2) (0.1)
Income before income taxes 3.2 21 4.4 2.7 8.6 4.7
Provision for income taxes 11 0.7 1.6 1.0 3.1 1.7
Net income $21 1.4% $2.8 1.7% $55 3.0%
Per share

Basic earnings per share $0.49 $0.67 $1.24

Diluted earnings per share $0.42 $0.50 $0.94

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Erfdecember 31, 2004

SALES. Revenues for 2005 increased $24.8 milliorl,504%, to approximately $185.4 million from $1&@nillion in 2004. Sales for the MF
segment increased $24.8 million, or 15.7% primatikg to a broad based increase in sales of purepsngs, safety products and mill supg
to companies engaged in oilfield service, oil and groduction, mining, electricity generation aettpchemical processing. The sales incre
appear to be at least partially the result of apromed economy and high energy prices. Sales bitbéusinesses acquired in 2005 accot
for $7.3 million of the 2005 sales increase. Extigdsales of the acquired businesses, sales fdviR® segment increased 11.0%. Sales fc
Electrical Contractor segment were the same ati®#lidn for 2004 and 2005.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit for 2005 increased 26cb¥ipared to 2004. Gross profit as a percentagalet increased by approxima
2.3% for 2005, when compared to 2004. Gross pasfih percentage of sales for the MRO segment isedet® 26.6% in 2005 from 24.3%
2004. This increase can be primarily attributedntreased margins on pump related equipment solth&®yMRO segment. The 2004 pel
included certain large sales of products for offshenergy production with lower than average margin 2005 we replaced those sales
smaller, higher margin sales. Gross profit as agreage of sales for the Electrical Contractor ssgnncreased to 42.6% for 2005, up f
41.9% in 2004. This increase resulted from theinoetd effort to focus on selling higher margin dpkyg electrical products and to be selec
on selling lower margin commodity type electricabgucts.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling, genal and administrative expense for 2005 increasedroximately $6.
million, or 17.8%, when compared to 2004. The iaseeis primarily attributed to increased salaii@sentive compensation, employee bene
payroll related expenses and costs associatedtwithhurricanes in 2005. Selling, general and adstiaiive expense associated with the
businesses acquired in 2005 accounted for $0.9omidif the increase. Salaries have increased pgaréis a result of hiring more sales rele
personnel for the purpose of increasing sales.nline= compensation has increased as a result ofased gross profit. As a percentag
revenue, the 2005 expense increased by approxymaudo to 21.7% from 21.3% for 2004. This incre@serimarily the result of increas
incentive compensation. The majority of our empks/eeceive incentive compensation which is baseah gposs profit. Selling, general ¢
administrative expense as a percentage of gro$is geclined in 2005 compared to 2004.

OPERATING INCOME. Operating income for 2005 incre@dby approximately $4.2 million, or 80.5%, whemared to 2004. This incre:
was the result of an 84.1% increase in operaticgrnire for the MRO segment and a 14.5% increase énatipg income for the Electric
Contractor segment. Operating income for the MR@vremt increased as a result of increased grosg, aftially offset by increased sellit
general, and administrative expense. Operatingniecéor the Electrical Contractor segment increagsda result of selling, general
administrative costs decreasing and gross prafieising



INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2005 in@édsy $0.1 million to $1.0 million from $0.9 milliofor 2004. This increase resul
from the combination of increased debt to fund &itjans and an approximate 190 basis point in@eéaprime and LIBOR market inter
rates for 2005 compared to 2004. The effect ofitheease in market interest rates was partiallgeifby the lower margins on our new cr
facility.

INCOME TAXES. As of December 31, 2005, we have rded net deferred tax assets of $0.9 million remrgsg the future tax benefits
certain accruals not currently deductible. We lwelig is more likely than not that the deferred #ssets will be realized as these reserve
recovered and reduce future taxable income.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2003

SALES. Revenues for 2004 increased $9.9 million6.686, to approximately $160.6 million from $150n7lion in 2003. Sales for the MR
segment increased $10.0 million, or 6.7% primadihg to increased sales of products for offshoreggngroduction and general manufactur
Sales for the Electrical Contractor segment deecthy $0.1 million, or 3.4%, when compared to 2008s decline resulted from an effor!
focus on sales of higher margin specialty eledtpcaducts and to be selective on sales of lowegimaommaodity type electrical products.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit as a percentage of sieeased by approximately 1.1% for 2004, whenpawed to 2003. Gross profit a
percentage of sales for the MRO segment decreas2d.3% for 2004, from 25.4% in 2003. This decrezes® be attributed to increased c
incurred due to leaks discovered during pressistntg of a recently introduced type of fiberglaggepinstalled on several offshore ene
production platforms and the abnormal frequency @iadnitude of recent vendor price increases whieldenit difficult to immediately pa
through the increases to our customers. We areimgth pass these increases to our customers. @rofis as a percentage of sales for
Electrical Contractor segment increased to 41.982004, from 38.8% in 2003. This increase resuftedh increased sales of higher ma
specialty type electrical products.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling, genetl and administrative expense for 2004 was appratdip the same as !
2003. As a percentage of revenue, the 2004 expeeseased by approximately 1.4% to 21.3% from 22{@802003. This decrease
attributable to an increase in productivity.

OPERATING INCOME. Operating income for 2004 incres20.9% when compared to 2003. Operating incomehi®e MRO segme
increased 17.4% as a result of gross profit inémgamore than selling, general and administratijee@se increased. Operating income fo
Electrical Contractor segment increased 170.7% vdoampared to 2003. The improved operating incoméhfe Electrical Contractor segm
is the result of reduced selling, general and adinative expense combined with increased grostgrom increased sales of higher mai
specialty type electrical products.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2004 deeckay 21.5%, to $0.9 million from $1.2 million daog 2003. This decline results fr
a lower average debt balance for 2004 when compar2d03.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General Overview

As a distributor of MRO products and Electrical @antor products, we require significant amountsvofking capital to fund inventories &
accounts receivable. Additional cash is requiredcfapital items such as information technology armtehouse equipment. We also reg
cash to pay our lease obligations and to servicelebt.

We used approximately $1.2 million of cash in ofiatpactivities in 2005 as compared to $5.1 millioncash provided during 2004. T
change between the two years was primarily at@iletto the $7.6 million increase in accounts reatge in 2005 compared to the $0.3 mil
decline in 2004. The increase in accounts recedvabl2005 resulted from the $17.0 million incre@sesales for the fourth quarter of 2(
compared to the fourth quarter of 2004. We alsa Ukt 1 million of cash to pay employee taxes reldte the cashless exercise of s
options. This amount was partially offset by the5$#illion after tax benefit of the tax deductiore weceived due to the exercise of s
options. The tax deduction allowed us to cease mgal@deral tax payments for 2005 and will reduakefal tax payments in 2006.

We purchased approximately $0.6 million of cap#asets during 2005 compared to $1.9 million for&2@@apital expenditures during 2(
were related primarily to computer equipment, cotapsoftware, inventory handling equipment, andding improvements. The 2004 cap
expenditures related primarily to an airplane aathputer equipment. We purchased the airplane teé&se our efficiency in marketing t
nationwide customer base and to manage our numeeouste locations. Capital expenditures for 20@6expected to be between the amc
for 2005 and 2004.

At December 31, 2005, our long-term debt was $8€lkon compared to total capitalization (longrm debt plus shareholders' equity) of $
million. Approximately $20.0 million of this outstding debt bears interest at various floating raféerefore, as an example, a 200 basis
increase in interest rates would increase our dnnigaest expense by approximately $0.4 million.

Our normal trade terms require payment within 3@sdaf invoice date. In response to competition andtomer demands we will of
extended terms to selected customers with goodtdrestory. Customers that are financially stroegd to request extended terms more «



than customers that are not financially strong. Wiahour customers, including companies listechie Fortune 500, do not pay us within st
terms for a variety of reasons, including a genbtaliness philosophy to pay vendors as late ashipes®/e generally collect the amounts
from these large, slow-paying customers.

During 2005, the amount available to be borrowedenrour credit facility increased from $10.0 mifliat December 31, 2004 to $11.0 mil
at December 31, 2005. This increase in availabditying 2005 resulted from an increase in the tef#d value of inventory and accou
receivable, partially offset by a $7.9 million iease in the amount borrowed under our lines ofitcr&tle increased borrowings were u
primarily to fund acquisitions. Management beliettest the liquidity of our balance sheet at Decen@ie 2005, provides us with the ability
meet our working capital needs, scheduled princg@lments, capital expenditures and Series B pesfestock dividend payments dur
2006.

Credit Facility

On August 2, 2005, we entered into a new credillifiaq"New Credit Facility") which replaced the @vious credit facility ("Old Crec
Facility").

The New Credit Facility provides for borrowings tgpan aggregate of the lesser of (i) a percentdgeeccollateral value based on a formule
forth therein or (ii) $30.0 million, and maturedyJ81, 2009. The New Credit Facility is securedrbgeivables, inventory and intangibles.
New Credit Facility contains customary affirmatised negative covenants as well as financial cousntimat are measured quarterly
require that we maintain a certain cash flow ametiofinancial ratios.

The New Credit Facility allows us to borrow at LIBJlus amargin ranging from 0.75% to 1.25% or prime minusaxgin of 1.75% to 1.25¢
At December 31, 2005, the LIBOR based rate was IRBflus 75 basis points. At December 31, 2005, tiragbased rate was prime mii
175 basis points. The LIBOR and prime based rateleiuthe New Credit Facility are generally 150 bgsdints and 175 basis points lov
respectively, than those assessed under the OttitGiacility. At December 31, 2005, $15 million whsrrowed at an interest rate of 5.12
under the LIBOR option and $3.2 million was borrala an interest rate of 5.5% under the prime apf@pmmitment fees of .125 percent
annum are payable on the portion of the New Ctedlitlity capacity not in use for borrowings at agiyen time. This fee is 12.5 basis po
lower than the same fee under the Old Credit Raciit December 31, 2005, we were in compliancéwit covenants. In addition to the $
million of cash at December 31, 2005, we had $idilfon available for borrowings under the New Gitdehacility at December 31, 2005.

The New Credit Facility's principal financial cownis include:

Fixed Charge Coverage RatiolThe New Credit Facility requires that the Fixeda@je Coverage Ratio be not less than 2.0 to 1df asacl
fiscal quarter end, determined on a rolling fouaers basis, with "Fixed Charge Coverage Ratidihdd as the aggregate of net profit ¢
taxes plus depreciation expense, amortization esggeand cash capital contributions minus divideara$ distributions divided by the aggre¢
of the current maturity of long-term debt and calpted lease payments.

Debt to Credit Facility Adjusted EBITDA The New Credit Facility requires that the Compamgtio of Total Funded Debt to Credit Fac
Adjusted EBITDA, determined on a rolling four queag basis, not exceed 4.0 to 1.0 as of each quaarterTotal Funded Debt is defined ur
the Facility for financial covenant purposes asshm of all obligations for borrowed money (exchglsubordinated debt) plus all capital I
obligations. Credit Facility Adjusted EBITDA is deéd under the credit facility for financial covenigurposes as net profit before tax,
interest expense (net of capitalized interest espgrepreciation expense and amortization exparndasive of acquisitions.

Borrowings
December 31, B Increase
2004 B 2005 (Decrease)
(in Thousands) B
Current portion of long-term debt $1,420 B $ 1,358 $ (62)
Long-term debt, less current portion 14,925 25,109 10,184
Total long-term debt $ 16,345 B $ 26,467 $10,122(2)
Amount availabléV $9,998 B $ 10,972 $974(3)




(1) Represents amount available to be borroweldeaindicated date under the credit facility.

(2) The funds obtained from the increase in lonmgitdebt were primarily used to acquire two
businesses.

(3) The $1.0 million increase in the amount avadéab primarily a result of an increase in the atdral
value of inventory and accounts receivable, pdytaffset by increased borrowings under the line of
credit.

Performance Metric.

December 31, B Increase
2004 B 2005 (1) B (Decrease)
Days of sales outstanding (in days) 47.6 B 52.3 B 4.7
Inventory turns 7.1 B 6.9 B (0.2)
(1) Results for businesses acquired in 2005 wenaaized to compute these performance metrics.

Accounts receivable days of sales outstanding w&r8 at December 31, 2005 compared to 47.6 dajpeeember 31, 2004. The incre
resulted primarily from the increase in sales ia tburth quarter of 2005 compared to the fourthrigweof 2004. Annualized inventory tu
were 6.9 times at December 31, 2005 compared ttrieks at December 31, 2004. The decline in inwgrtiarns resulted from decisions m
by inventory management to increase inventory ppsett increased sales.

Funding Commitment

We believe our cash generated from operations waithhle under our New Credit Facility will meetrawormal working capital needs dur
the next twelve months. However, we may requiretamiéil debt or equity financing to fund potentadquisitions. Such additional financii
may include additional bank debt or the public ovagte sale of debt or equity securities. In conioecwith any such financing, we may is
securities that substantially dilute the interedtsur shareholders. We may not be able to obtdditianal financing on attractive terms, if
all.

Contractual Obligations

The impact that our contractual obligations as e€E@mber 31, 2005 are expected to have on our itgudd cash flow in future periods is
follows:

Payments Due by Period

Total Less than 1-3 3-5 More

1 Year Years Years than 5

Years
Long-term debt, including current | $26,467 $1,358 $2,932 $ $ 1,857

20,320
Portion®

Operating lease obligations 5773 1,826 3,114 833 -
Estimated interest paymen#s 1,591 439 635 298 219




Total $33,831 $2,076

21,451

NI

(1) Amounts represent the expected cash paymentsirofong-term debt and do not include any fairuea
adjustment.

| $ 3,623

| $6,681

| s

(2) Assumes interest rates in effect at December28D5. Assumes debt is paid on maturity date amid|n
replaced. Does not include interest on the revgllime of credit as borrowings under this facifityctuate. The
amounts of interest incurred for borrowings under tevolving lines of credit were $956,000, $650,@Mhd
755,000 for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Margent anticipates an increased level of interagingnts
on the New Credit Facility in 2006 as a resultrafreased interest rates and debt levels.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do not pamigpin transactions that generate relationshiph witconsolidated entities or finan
partnerships, such as entities often referred &trastured finance or special purpose entitie®E'S"), which would have been establishet
the purpose of facilitating otfalance sheet arrangements or other contractuathpw or limited purposes. As of December 31, 2005 wert
not involved in any unconsolidated SPE transactions

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of business, DXP enters amiotractual arrangements under which DXP may atgréedemnify customers from a
losses incurred relating to the services we perf@uch indemnification obligations may not be sabje maximum loss clauses. Historice
payments made related to these indemnities haveibeeaterial.

Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhie United States of America require:
to make estimates and assumptions in determinigegported amounts of assets and liabilities asdasure of contingent assets and liabil
at the date of the financial statements and therteg amounts of revenues and expenses duringpueting period. The significant estime
made by us in the accompanying financial statemmetése to reserves for accounts receivable cdbli¢itt, inventory valuations, income tax
and self-insured medical claims. Actual resultsldaliffer from those estimates.

Critical accounting policies are those that arehlbobst important to the portrayal of a companyigiicial position and results of operatis
and require management's subjective or complexnjiethgs. These policies have been discussed witlAtit Committee of the Board
Directors of DXP. Below is a discussion of what Welieve are our critical accounting policies. Alseze Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenues when an agreement is in,paice is fixed, title for product passes to tlustomer or services have been provided
collectibility is reasonably assured.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

Provisions to the allowance for doubtful accourres made monthly and adjustments are made peribdi@ed circumstances warrant) ba
upon the expected collectibility of all such accsuMrite-offs could be materially different from the resepr@vided if economic conditio
change or actual results deviate from historicaidis.

Inventory

Inventory consists principally of finished goodsida priced at lower of cost or market, cost bailegermined using both the first-in, firgtd
(FIFO) and the lasi, first out (LIFO) method. Reserves are providgainst inventory for estimated obsolescence baged the aging of tl
inventory and market trends. Actual obsolescenciddoe materially different from the reserve if sBomic conditions or market trends cha
significantly.

Income Taxe

In accordance with SFAS 109, Accounting for Incofiages, we have recorded a net deferred tax as$&t®million as of December 31, 20
We believe it is more likely than not that this deferred tax asset will be realized based primaril the assumption of future taxable inco



Self-insured Medical Claims

We accrue for the estimated outstanding balancenphid medical claims for our employees and thepeshdents. The accrual is adju:
monthly based on recent claims experience. Theabctaims could deviate from recent claims experéeand be materially different from
reserve.

Management periodically revaluates these estimates as events and circurastahange. Together with the effects of the mattessusse
above, these factors may significantly impact teenany's results of operations from period-to-gkrio

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated FimhiStatements for discussion of recent accountingguncements.
Inflation

We do not believe the effects of inflation have angterial adverse effect on our results of opematior financial condition. We attempt
minimize inflationary trends by passing manufactyméce increases on to the customer wheneveripeadte.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

Our market risk results primarily from volatility interest rates. Our exposure to interest rakerekates primarily to our debt portfolio. Us
floating interest rate debt outstanding at DecenBier2005, a 100 basis point increase in interagsrwould increase our annual inte
expense by $200,000.

The table below provides information about the Canys market sensitive financial instruments antstitutes a forward-looking statement.

Principal Amount By Expected Maturity
(in thousands, except percentages)
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 There- Total Fair
after Value

Fixed Rate $ $ $ $1,015 $ 100 $1,857 $6,469 $6,469
Long- term 1,088 1,155 1,254
Debt
Average 6.04% 6.04% 6.08% 6.02% 6.25% 6.25% 6.11%
Interest
Rate
Floating Rate $ 270 $261 $ 262 $19,166 39 - $19,998 $19,998
Long-term Debt
Average 4.36% 4.35% 4.36% 5.46% 4.15% - 5.32%
Interest
Rate (1)
Total Maturities | $ $ $ $20,181 $139 $ $26,467 $26,467

1,358 1,416 1,516 1,857
(1) Assumes floating interest rates in effect at@msber 31, 2005

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DXP Enterprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiasesf December 31, 2004 and 2(
and the related consolidated statements of incsheeholders' equity and cash flows for each othihee years in the period ended Decel
31, 2005. These consolidated financial statemergstiee responsibility of the Company's managem@nut. responsibility is to express
opinion on these consolidated financial statemeasged on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audisittsndards of the Public Company Accounting OvéatsBpard (United States). The
standards require that we plan and perform thet aodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimtgcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. The Company has determined thanitisequired to have, nor were we engaged to parfan audit of its internal control o
financial reporting. An audit includes examining, @ test basis, evidence supporting the amountslisnbbsures in the financial statements
audit also includes assessing the accounting pitesiused and significant estimates made by maragems well as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentation. We believe thatoidits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial pos
of DXP Enterprises, Inc., and Subsidiaries at Ddmam31, 2004 and 2005, and the results of theiratjpes and their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20@®nformity with accounting principles generafigcepted in the United States of Amer

/s/ HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP
February 24, 2006

Houston, Texas

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

December 31,

2004 2005
ASSETS B
Current assets:
Cash $2,303 B $570
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances fabtfal accounts B
of $1,776 in 2004 and $1,835 in 2005 19,126 29,279
Inventories, net 16,995 B 22,811
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 327 541
Federal income taxes recoverable - B 2,033
Deferred income taxes 945 968
Total current assets 39,696 B 56,202
Property and equipment, net 8,261 8,752
Deferred income taxes 257 B -
Goodwill and other intangibles - 7,436
Other assets 69 B 530
Total assets $ 48,283 $ 72,920
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities: -
Current portion of long-term debt $ 1,420 $1,358
Trade accounts payable 12,905 B 15,919
Accrued wages and benefits 2,370 5,012
Customer advances 826 B 2,209
Federal income taxes payable 432 214
Other accrued liabilities 2,343 B 3,365
Total current liabilities 20,296 28,077




Long-term debt, less current portion 14,925 25,109
Deferred income taxes - 115
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary 186 30

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)

Shareholders' equity:

Series A preferred stock, 1/¥0vote per share; $1.00 par value;

liquidation preference of $100 per share ($112etdbnber 31, 2005); 1 1

1,000,000 shares authorized; 1,122 shares issukdutstanding

Series B convertible preferred stock, 1f%ote per share; $1.00

par value; $100 stated value; liquidation prefeeeoic$100 per

share ($1,500 at December 31, 2005); 1,000,00@slzauthorized;

17,700 shares and 15,000 shares issued, 15,00sshastanding 18 15

and 2,700 shares and -0- shares in treasury stegpectively

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shartbe@zed;

4,257,760 and 4,795,402 shares issued, 4,030,31.3,385,402

shares outstanding and 227,447 and -0- sharesdsury stock, 41 48

respectively

Paid-in capital 2,489 1,894
Retained earnings 13,094 18,471
Treasury stock, at cost (,797) -

Notes receivable from David R. Little, CEO, and &anWebster, (970) (840)
employee

Total shareholders' equity 12,876 19,589
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 48,283 $72,920

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME




(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005
Sales $ 150,683 $160585 |  $ 185,364
Cost of sales 112,134 121,154— 135,650
Gross profit 38,549 39,431 ] 49,714
Selling, general and administrative expense 34,240 34,222 ] 40,310
Operating income 4,309 5,209 9,404
Other income 65 60 56
Interest expense 1,177) (924) (1,000)
Minority interest in loss of consolidated subsigliar - 39 155
Income before provision for income taxes 3,197 4,384 8,615
Provision for income taxes 1,128 1,604 3,148
Net income 2,069 2,780 5,467
Preferred stock dividend (90) (90) ] (90)
Net income attributable to common $1,979 $2,690 $5,377
shareholders
Per share and share amounts
Basic earnings per common share $0.49 $0.67 $1.24
Common shares outstanding 4,072 4,027 4,349
Diluted earnings per share $0.42 $0.50 $0.94
Common and common equivalent shares 4,920 5,509 5,789
outstanding
The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.




DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

(In Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Series A

Preferred

Stock

Series B

Preferred

Stock

Common

Stock

Paid-
In

Capital

Retained

Earnings

Treasury

Stock

Notes

Receivable

From

Share-

holders

Total

BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31,
2002

$1

$18

$41

$
2,842

$8,425

$(1,894)

$ (1,346)

8,087

Dividends paid

(90)

(90)

Acquisition of 46

shares of Series
A

Preferred Stock

@)

1)

Collections on
notes

receivable

14

14

Purchase of 515

shares of
common

stock

©)

©)

Net income

2,069 ’

2,069

BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31,
2003

18

41

2,841

10,404

(1,897)

(1,332)

10,076




Collections on
notes

receivable

27

27

Dividends paid

(90)

(90)

Purchase of
359,588

shares of
common

stock

(341)

335

(6)

Exercise of stock

options for
41,000

shares of
common

stock

(352)

441

89

Net income

2,780

2,780

BALANCES AT

DECEMBER 31,
2004

18

41

2,489

13,094

(1,797)

(970)

12,876

Collections on
notes

receivable

40

40

Dividends paid

(90)

(90)

Cancellation of
Series

B Preferred
Stock in

Treasury

©)

(267)

270

Purchase of
6,500

shares of
common

stock

(95)

90

()

Exercise of stock

options for
1,122,175

shares of

(328)

1,622

1,301




common -

stock
Net income - - - - 5,467 - - 5,467
BALANCES AT $1 $15 $48 B $ $18,471 B $- $ (840) $

1,894 19,589
DECEMBER 31,
2005

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)
Years Ended December 31
2003 2004 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 2,069 $2,780 $ 5,467
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities --
Depreciation and amortization 1,058 992 990
Deferred income taxes 128 77 306
Gain on sale of property and equipment 2) 4) -
Minority interest in loss of consolidated subsigtiar - (39) (155)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, naseéts
and liabilities acquired in business combinations:
Accounts receivable (1,852) 286 (7,650)
Inventories 1,247 2,150 (2,574)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 175 112 (3,089)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,100 (2,227) 5,470
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 6,923 5,127 (1,235)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (419) (1,866) (572)




Purchase of businesses - - (6,069)

Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment 2 6 937

Net cash used in investing activities (417) (1,860) (5,704)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from debt 147,581 155,421 145,231

Principal payments on revolving line of credit, (154,542) (157,225) (136,755)

long-term debt and notes payable

Acquisition of common and preferred stock 4) - -
Dividends paid in cash (90) (90) (90)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 42 874
Payments for employee taxes related to exercise of - - (4,094)

stock options

Proceeds from minority interest owners of conseéida - 225 -
subsidiary

Collections on notes receivable from shareholders 14 27 40
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (7,041) (1,600) 5,206
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (535) 1,667 (1,733)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,171 636 2,303
CASH AT END OF YEAR $636 $2,303 570

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:

Cash paid for --

Interest $1,209 $ 860 984
Income taxes $ 60 $2,126 875
Cash income tax refunds $25 $16 36

Noncash activities:

Financing activities exclude the exchange on M&th2004 of two notes receivable from Mr. Littlehi€f Executive
Officer, with a face value of $338,591 for 80,6 @uses of DXP common stock.

Changes in operating assets and liabilities exclodeé4.5 million after tax benefit of tax deduasarelated to stock option

exercises in 2005.




The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidate financial statements.

DXP ENTERPRISES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DXP Enterprises, Inc. and subsidiaries (DXP orGuenpany), a Texas corporation, was incorporateduby 26, 1996, to be the successc
SEPCO Industries, Inc. (SEPCO). The Company isrizgd into two segments: Maintenance, Repair andr@jng (MRO) and Electric
Contracting. See Note 12 for discussion of therirss segments.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigrdside the accounts of the Company and its whollyned subsidiaries. All significe
intercompany accounts and transactions have beaimated in consolidation.

Receivables and Credit Risk

Trade receivables consist primarily of uncollatered customer obligations due under normal tradegewhich usually require payment wit
30 days of the invoice date. However, these payiteents are extended in select cases and many cait@lo not pay within stated trade tel
Payments on trade receivables are applied as teditsy customer, or to the earliest unpaid invaices

The Company has trade receivables from a divegsifisstomer base in the rocky mountain, southeaatairsouthwestern regions of the Un
States. The Company believes no significant comaganh of credit risk exists. The Company evaludtes creditworthiness of its custom
financial positions and monitors accounts on a lagoasis, but generally does not require coll&téteovisions to the allowance for doub
accounts are made monthly and adjustments are pexitedically (as circumstances warrant) based upanagement's best estimate of
collectibility of all such accounts. No customepmesents more than 10% of consolidated sales.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of finished goodsdaare priced at lower of cost or market, cost dpalrtermined using the first-in, firett
(FIFO) and the last-in, firstut (LIFO) method. Reserves are provided againatrtories for estimated obsolescence based upoagihg o
the inventories and market trends.

Property and Equipment

Assets are carried on the basis of cost. Providmndepreciation are computed at rates consideréa sufficient to amortize the costs of as
over their expected useful lives. Depreciation mfgerty and equipment is computed using the sttdigh method. Maintenance and repair
depreciable assets are charged against earningsc@sed. Additions and improvements are capitalizé/hen properties are retired
otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulatededigpion are removed from the accounts and gainesses are credited or charge
earnings.

The principal estimated useful lives used in deteimy depreciation are as follows:
Buildings 20 - 39 years

Building improvements 10 - 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years

Leasehold improvements over the shorter of theneséid useful life o



the term of the related lease

Federal Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability metbbdccounting for income taxes. Under this methaeferred taxes are determined base
differences between financial reporting and taxebaxf assets and liabilities and are measured tisengnacted marginal tax rates and laws
will be in effect when the differences reverse.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company's presentation of cash includes cagivagnts. Cash equivalents are defined as dbaom-investments with maturity dates
ninety days or less at time of purchase.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

A summary of the carrying and the fair value offigial instruments at December 31, 2004 and 2085 fsllows (in thousands):

2004 2005
Carrying B Fair B Carrying B Fair
Value Value Value Value
Cash $2,303 $2,303 $570 $570
Notes receivables from David R. Little, B
CEO, and James Webster, employee 970 705 840 B 628
Long-term debt, including current portion 16,345 B 16,345 B 26,467 B 26,467

The carrying value of the longrm debt approximates fair value based upon theegtirates and terms available to the Compan
instruments with similar remaining maturities.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has elected to follow APB No. 25, aldted Interpretations in accounting for its empkgtock options because, as disct
below, the alternative fair value accounting preddfor under SFAS No. 148 requires the use of aptialuation models that were
developed for use in valuing employee stock optidsrsder APB No. 25, no compensation expense isgrazed if the exercise price of 1
Company's employee stock options equals the mankie¢ of the underlying stock on the date of grawb. compensation expense \
recognized under APB No. 25 during the three yeaded December 31, 2005.

Pro forma information regarding net income and ie@s per share is required by SFAS No. 148 andbleas determined as if the Comp
had accounted for its stock options under theviaiue method as provided therein. The fair valueasfh option grant is estimated on the
of grant using the Black-Scholes optipricing model with the following weighted averagesamptions used for options issued in 2003,
and 2005: riskree interest rates of 4.0% for 2003, 4.5% for 20804 4.14% for 2005; expected lives of five to years, assumed volatility
80% for 2003, 78% for 2004, and 75% for 2005; aoexpected dividends.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estithtetie value of the options is amortized to expeoger the options' vesting period. Set fi
below is a summary of the Company's net income eartiings per share as reported and pro forma te ifair valuebased method

accounting defined in SFAS No. 148 had been applide pro forma compensation expense may not beeseptative of future amou
because options vest over several years and gnexaire upon termination of employment, and add#l options may be granted in fut
years.

Years Ended December 31,

2003 ’ ’ 2004 ’7’ 2005




(in Thousands, except per share amounts)

Pro forma impact of fair value method (FAS 148)

Reported net income attributable to common shadehsl| $1,979 $2,690 $5,377
Less: fair value impact of employee stock compeosat (70) (100) (115)
Pro forma net income attributable to common shddshs $1,909 $2,590 $5,262

Earnings per common share

Basic - as reported $0.49 $0.67 $1.24
Diluted - as reported $0.42 $0.50 B $0.94
Basic - pro forma $0.47 B $0.64 B $1.21
Diluted - pro forma $0.41 $0.49 B $0.92

Revenue Recognition

Revenues recognized include product sales anddgsliior freight and handling charges. The Compagepgnizes product sales and billings
freight and handling charges when an agreemem isldce, price is fixed, title for product passesthie customer or services have t
provided, and collectibility is reasonably assuri@dipping and handling costs are included in cbsates.

The Company reserves for potential customer reto@ased upon the historical level of returns.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees the Company to make estimates
assumptions in determining the reported amountaseéts and liabilities and disclosure of contingesstets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts v#nges and expenses during the reporting period. sigmificant estimates made by
Company in the accompanying financial statemerittado the reserves for accounts receivable diiéty, inventory valuations, incon
taxes and self-insured medical claims. Actual tsszduld differ from those estimates and such difiees could be material.

The Company purchases insurance for catastroplpiosexes and those risks required to be insureédwy The Company retains a portior
the risk for medical claims, general liability apdoperty losses. The various deductibles per osuramce policies generally do not exc
$200,000 per occurrence. There are also certaks fizr which the Company does not maintain insuearithe Company accrues for
estimated outstanding balance of unpaid medicahsl&r our employees and their dependents basewl tgrent claims experience.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company determines the realization of goodawillii other intangibles in accordance with SFAS Ni2, IGoodwill and Other Intangik
Assets" and its other long-lived assets in accardamth SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairmen Disposal of Long-ived Assets'
Under SFAS No. 142, the Company determines fainevalsing capitalization of earnings estimates aadkat valuation multiples for ea
reporting unit. Under SFAS No. 144, the Company pares the carrying value of lotiged assets to its projection of future undiscedntas
flows attributable to such assets, as well as eetuother factors such as business trends andagiesenomic conditions. In the event that
carrying value exceeds the future undiscounted ftagls, the Company records an impairment chargénatjincome equal to the excess o
carrying value over the asset's fair value.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is equal to net income.

2. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:



On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.(f8sed 2004), "SharBased Payment" ("SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS No. 123
require companies to measure all employee shaded compensation awards using a fair value medéimoldrecord such expense in
consolidated financial statements. In addition, adeption of SFAS No. 123(R) requires additionatcamting and disclosure related to
income tax and cash flow effects resulting fromrshesed payment arrangements. SFAS No. 123(R) istieebeginning January 1, 20
The Company does not expect the impact of applghiiggguidance to be significantly different fromattpresented in the pforma disclosure
in Note 1.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151véimory Costs" ("SFAS 151"). This Statement amethésguidance in ARB No. 4
Chapter 4, "Inventory Pricing," to clarify the acenming for abnormal amounts of idle facility expengreight, handling costs, and was
material (spoilage). SFAS 151 requires that thasms$ be recognized as currgatriod charges. In addition, this Statement requitea
allocation of fixed production overheads to thetsad conversion be based on the normal capacitigeoproduction facilities. The provisions
SFAS 151 are effective for inventory costs incuriediscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. @teption of this standard has hac
material impact on the Company's financial position results of operations.

In December 2004, SFAS No. 153, "Exchanges of Nomatasy Assets an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29" is effective fiscal year
beginning after June 15, 2005. This Statement addsethe measurement of exchange of nonmonetasts asal eliminates the exception fi
fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchangesnafar productive assets in paragraph 21(b) oBABpinion No. 29, "Accounting fi
Nonmonetary Transactions" and replaces it with>aeption for exchanges that do not have commescibstance. The adoption of SFAS
is expected to have no impact on the Company'sotidased financial statements.

3. ACQUISITIONS

All of the Company's acquisitions have been acemlifior using the purchase method of accountingeRess and expenses of the acqt
businesses have been included in the accompanygimgplidated financial statements beginning on thespective dates of acquisition. -
allocation of purchase price to the acquired asmedsliabilities is based on estimates of fair nearkalue and may be prospectively revise
and when additional information the Company is &wgiconcerning certain asset and liability valoas is obtained, provided that s
information is received no later than one yearrdfte date of acquisition.

On August 20, 2005 the Company paid approximatély $nillion to purchase the assets of a pump refaatwrer. The Company made |
acquisition to enhance its ability to meet customeeds for shorter lead times on selected pumps.ddmpany assumed $1.0 million
liabilities and gave a $0.5 million credit to theller to use to purchase maintenance, repair aathtipg supplies from the Company. The !
million cash portion was financed using funds alfzli under the Company's bank revolving creditifgci

On December 1, 2005 the Company purchased R. Alléfae expand geographically into Ohio, Indianarnkucky and West Virginia. The
Company paid $7.3 million ($3.65 million cash ar&l@% million in promissory notes payable to thenfer owners) and assumed approxim
$1.6 million of debt and $1.9 million of accountsypble and other liabilities. The cash portion ¥iragnced using funds available under the
Company's bank revolving credit facility.

The allocation of purchase price reflected in thec@mber 31, 2005 consolidated balance sheet isnpraty. The initial purchase pri
allocations may be adjusted within one year ofghechase date for changes in the estimates ofaih@dlue of assets acquired and liabili
assumed. The following table summarizes the estidhatir values of the assets acquired and liaddliissumed during 2005 (in thousands):

Accounts Receivable $ 2,397
Inventory 2,963
Property and equipment 1,504
Goodwill and intangibles 7,436
Other assets 529
Assets acquired 14,829
Current liabilities assumed 3,422
Non-current liabilities 1,165
assumed
Net assets acquired $
10,242

The pro forma unaudited results of operations fer Company on a consolidated basis for the yeatsde®ecember 31, 2005 and 2(



assuming the consummation of the purchases anoédal, 2004, are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2005
In Thousands, except for per share
data

Net sales $184,421 $209,568
Net income $ 3,190 $ 6,287
Per share data
Basic earnings $0.77 $1.39
Diluted earnings $0.57 $1.08

4. INVENTORIES:

The Company uses the LIFO method of inventory wanafor approximately 86 percent of its inventgrieRemaining inventories ¢
accounted for using the FIFO method. The recoriiliaof FIFO inventory to LIFO basis is as follows:

December 31,

2004 2005

(in Thousands)

Finished goods $20,441 $25,740
Work in process 253 1,237
Inventories at FIFO 20,694 B 26,977
Less - LIFO allowance (3,699) (4,166)
Inventories $16,995 B $22,811

During 2003, 2004, and 2005, the Company expergthdEO inventory liquidations. The effect of thelguidations was to increase gr
profit by approximately $39,000 in 2003, $46,00@0604, and $16,000 in 2005.

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,

2004 ’7‘ 2005




(in Thousands)

Land $1,549 $1,748
Buildings and leasehold improvements 6,062 B 6,179
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5,575 6,605

13,186 B 14,532
Less - Accumulated depreciation and (4,925) (5,780)

amortization

$8,261 $8,752

6. LONG-TERM DEBT:

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31,

2004 2005

(in Thousands)

Credit facility:

Working capital lines of credit $ 10,237 $
18,166

Term loan component 2,192 -

Note payable to a bank, floating rate at ninety dlBOR plus 2.25%,
collateralized by an airplane, payable in monthistallments through 1,490 1,377

August 2009

Unsecured notes payable to individuals, 3.76%13%. at December 31,
2005, midterm federal rate adjusted annually, pkeyisbmonthly or - 455

guarterly installments through November 2010

Unsecured notes payable to individuals, suborditateredit facility, - 3,650
6.0%,

payable in monthly installments through Decemb&%20

Mortgage loans payable to financial institution2586
collateralized by real estate, payable in monthstallments 2,372 2,819

through January 2013




Other notes 54 -

16,345 26,467

Less: Current portion (1,420) (1,358)

$14,925 $25,109

On August 2, 2005, the Company entered into a tegteement (the "Facility”) with Wells Fargo Bami¥ational Association. The Facil
consists of a revolving credit facility that proe&la $30 million line of credit to the Company. §hiew line of credit replaced the Compa
prior credit facility, which was last amended aedtated on June 25, 2003 and consisted of a teamdnd revolving credit facility. The n
Facility expires on July 31, 2009.

The Company's borrowings and letters of credittantding under the Facility at each moetid must be less than a borrowing base mee
as of the same mon#md. The borrowing base is defined under the Faal the sum of 85% of the Company's eligible ant®receivable al
55% of the value of eligible inventory, with advascagainst inventory at no time exceeding more 8@ of the total borrowing base. ~
Company's borrowing and letter of credit capacityler the Facility at any given time is $30 millitess borrowings and letters of cre
outstanding, subject to the borrowing base desdrdi®mve. The borrowing base for the Facility cated as of December 31, 2005 exce
$30 million. At December 31, 2005 $11.0 million wasilable for borrowing under the Facility.

The Facility provides for interest at LIBOR plusnaargin ranging from 0.75% to 1.25% or prime minumargin of 1.75% to 1.25%.

December 31, 2005 the LIBOR based rate was LIBQR @b basis points. At December 31, 2005 the pliased rate was prime minus

basis points. At December 31, 2005 $15 million wasrowed at an interest rate of 5.125% under tH@OR option and $3.2 million w
borrowed at an interest rate of 5.5% under the @raption. Commitment fees of .125 percent per anamnpayable on the portion of
Facility capacity not in use for borrowings at agiyen time. Borrowings under the Facility are secuby all of the Company's accot
receivable, inventory and general intangibles.

The Facility contains financial covenants definv@rious financial measures and levels of these woneaswith which the Company m
comply. Covenant compliance is assessed as ofcqgater-end. The Facility's principal financial eoants include:

Fixed Charge Coverage Rat- The Facility requires that the Fixed Charge CogerRatio be not less than 2.0 to 1.0 as of eachlfiguarte
end, determined on a rolling four quarters basish WWrixed Charge Coverage Ratio" defined as thgregate of net profit after taxes
depreciation expense, amortization expense, and cagstal contributions minus dividends and disttibns divided by the aggregate of
current maturity of long-term debt and capitalitegise payments.

Debt to Credit Facility Adjusted EBITD- EBITDA is definedunder the Facility ("Credit Facility Adjusted EBITD) for financial covenar
purposes as net profit before tax, plus interepierge (net of capitalized interest expense), degii@c expense and amortization expe
inclusive of any acquisitions. The Facility requirthat the Company's ratio of Total Funded DebCtedit Facility Adjusted EBITD/
determined on a rolling four quarters basis, nateexl 4.0 to 1.0 as of each quarter end. Total Fubbt is defined under the Facility
financial covenant purposes as the sum of all aliigs for borrowed money (excluding subordinatelityiplus all capital lease obligations.

The maturities of long-term debt for the next fixgars and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2006 $ 1,358
2007 1,416
2008 1,516
2009 20,181
2010 139
Thereafter 1,857

$26,467

7. INCOME TAXES:

The provision for income taxes consists of theofelhg:



Years Ended December 31,
2003 2004 F 2005
(in Thousands)
Current - N

Federal $ 980 $ 1,505 $
2,749

State 20 22 93
1,000 1,527 B 2,842

Deferred 128 77 306
$1,128 $ 1,604 B $

3,148

The difference between income taxes computed detteral statutory income tax rate of 34% and ttowipion for income taxes is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
(in Thousands)

Income taxes computed at federal statutory rate $ 1,087 $1,491 $
2,929

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 13 15 61
Other 28 98 158
$1,128 $1,604 $

3,148

The net current and noncurrent components of daféncome tax balances are as follows:

December 31,

2004 2005

(in Thousands)

Net current assets $ 945 $ 968

Net non-current assets (liabilities) 257 (115)

Net assets $ 1,202 $ 853




Deferred tax liabilities and assets were comprisfatie following:

December 31,

The Company believes
2004 ’7’ 2005 |is more likely than not th

the net deferred incor
(in Thousands) tax asset as of Decem
31, 2005 in the amount
$0.9 million will be
realized based primar
on the assumption

Deferred tax assets:

Goodwill $715 $ 630 |future taxable income. T
— Company has certain st
Allowance for doubtful accounts 604 624 |tax net operating lo
L carryforwards aggregati
. _ |approximately $0.
Inventories 211 million, which expire i
. years 2006 through 20:
State net operating loss carryforwards 78 44 | A valuation allowance h
e been recorded to offset 1
Accruals 230 414 |deferred tax asset rela
| to these state tax 1
operating los
Total deferred tax assets 1,838 1,712 carryforwards. Th
r valuation allowanc
Less valuation allowance (78) (44) |represents a provision -
- the uncertainty as to t
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allavean 1,760 1,668 |realization  of  thes
carryforwards. Th
ferred liabiliti valuation allowanc
Deferred tax liabilities decreased by $143,01
] $141,000 and $34,000
Inventory - (20) |the years ended Decem
L 31, 2003, 2004 and 20(
Property and equipment (458) (745) |respectively.
Other (100) (50)
[ 8. SHAREHOLDERS'
Net deferred tax asset $1,202 $ 853 EQUITY:

Series A and B Preferred Stock

The holders of Series A preferred stock are edtitteonetenth of a vote per share on all matters presaotadvote of shareholders gener:
voting as a class with the holders of common steokl, are not entitled to any dividends or distiilmg other than in the event of a liquida
of the Company, in which case the holders of theeSeA preferred stock are entitled to a $100 ligtion preference per share. Each sha
the Series B convertible preferred stock is corivierinto 28 shares of common stock and a monthlidend per share of $.50. The holder
the Series B convertible stock are also entitled 100 liquidation preference per share after ayrof the distributions to the holders of
Series A preferred stock and to ceeth of a vote per share on all matters preseiotedvote of shareholders generally, voting asaascWitl
the holders of the common stock. During 2003 then@any purchased and cancelled 46 shares of Senmsférred stock from an individu
for $20.00 per share. During 2004 the Company dhett2,700 shares of Series B convertible prefestedk which had been held in treasury.

Restricted Stock

The DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005 Restricted Stock Rlathorizes the grant of 300,000 shares of comstaek in the form of restricted stc
awards as well as other awards. The plan was apgrby shareholders on July 15, 2005. Employeescidirs and consultants of DXP
eligible to participate in the plan. As of DecemBé&r 2005 no awards have been granted under the Ttee plan provides that on each Ju
during the term of the plan, each non-employeecthireof DXP will be granted 3,000 shares of res#dcstock.

Stock Options

The DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock @pBtan, the DXP Enterprises, Inc. Lomgfm Incentive Plan and the DXP Enterpri
Inc. Director Stock Option Plan authorized the graihoptions to purchase 900,000, 330,000 and 2@0dhares of the Company's comi
stock, respectively. In accordance with these stgation plans that were approved by the Compargdsehiolders, options were granted to
personnel for the purchase of shares of the Conmgpaoynmon stock at prices not less than the fainketavalue of the shares on the date



grant. Most options may be exercised not earlian ttwelve months nor later than ten years fromdde of grant. No future grants will
made under these stock option plans. Activity dy@003, 2004 and 2005 with respect to the stocionptollows:

B B Weighted B Weighted
Options Price Average Average
Shares B Per Share B Exercise Price— Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 | 2,131,667 B $0.65-$12.00 B $2.10 B
Granted at market price 30,000 $140-$1.40 $1.40 $1.17
Cancelled or expired (64,350) B $7.50-%$12.00 B $11.08 B
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 | 2,097,317 $0.65-$12.00 $1.82
Granted at market price 30,000 B $453-$453 B $4.53 B $3.74
Exercised (41,000) $1.00-$1.20 $1.03
Cancelled or expired (362,950) B $1.64-%$12.00 B $1.75 B
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 | 1,723,367 $0.65-$12.00 $1.90
Granted at market price 30,000 B $6.72-$6.72 B $6.72 B $5.43
Exercised (1,122,175) $0.65-$12.00 $2.19
Cancelled or expired (9,762) B $12.00 - $12.00 B $12.00 B
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 621,430 $0.92-$12.00 $1.44
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 598,030 $0.92-$12.00 $1.45
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
N Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of B Number B Contractual Life B Average B Number B Average
Exercise Outstanding (in years) Exercise Exercisable Exercise
Prices Price Price
$0.01 to $3.00 595,300 4.8 $1.19 571,900 $1.19
$3.01 to $6.00 B 10,000 B 8.5 B 4.53 B 10,000 B 4.53
$6.01 to $9.00 10,000 9.4 6.72 10,000 6.72
[ ] [ ] [ ] [ [




$9.01 to
$12.00

| 6,130

| 0.0 | | 12.00 | | 6,130

| 12.00

’7’ 621,430’ ’ 4.9 ’ ’ 1.44 ’ ’ 598,030’ ’ 1.45

The options outstanding at December 31, 2005, expitween January 2006 and July 2014. The weighterthge remaining contractual
was 3.6 years, 3.1 years, and 4.9 years at Dece3ib@2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Certain Equity Related Transactions

In January 2004, the Company paid a former offifehe Company $100,000 to terminate a stock opigreement between the Company
the former officer. The terminated stock optionesgment provided for the former officer to purchas8,000 shares of the Company's com
stock at $1.64 per share.

On March 31, 2004, DXP exchanged two of the nogegivable from Mr. Little, Chief Executive Officewith a face value of $338,5¢
including accrued interest, for 80,619 shares oP3Xommon stock held by three trusts for the beakMr. Little's children. The shares wi
valued at the $4.20 per share closing market pnicklarch 31, 2004.

In 2003, 2004 and 2005 DXP purchased 515, 588 abs@6shares of common stock from James Websteenaioyee, for approximate
$2,100, $2,800 and $94,510, respectively. The shawechased were valued at the closing market prighe date of each purchase in 200z
2004 and at the average closing market price ®twenty days immediately preceding the date oflmase in 2005. The purchase price of
purchase was applied to reduce the note receiviarteMr. Webster.

During 2004 and 2005 employees and directors of @X&cised nomualified stock options. DXP receives a tax dedurcfor the amount
gain recognized by the individuals exercising tipians. The after tax benefit of the tax deduct®mccounted for as an increase in paid-
capital. DXP issued the shares out of treasurykstocthe option exercises until treasury shareseweduced to zero in 2005. During 2
DXP withheld shares from a cashless option exetcismver $4.1 million of employee taxes paid by ®¥hich were related to the cash
option exercise.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on tedigiverage shares outstanding and excludes @ils&eurities. Diluted earnings per sl
is computed including the impacts of all potengidiilutive securities. The following table setstfothe computation of basic and dilu
earnings per share for the years ended Decemb&083, 2004 and 2005.

2003 2004 2005

(in Thousands, except per share amounts)

Basic:

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 4,072 4,027 4,349
Net income $2,069 $2,780 $5,467
Convertible preferred stock dividend 90 B 90 B 90
Net income attributable to common $1,979 $2,690 $5,377

shareholders

Per share amount $0.49 $0.67 $1.24

Diluted:




Basic weighted average shares outstanding 4,072 4,027 4,349
Net effect of dilutive stock options - based on 428 1,062 1,020
the treasury stock method

Assumed conversion of convertible 420 420 420
preferred stock

Total common and common equivalent shares 4,920 5,509 5,789
outstanding

Net income attributable to common $1,979 $2,690 $5,377
shareholders

Convertible preferred stock dividend 90 90 90
Net income for diluted earnings per share $2,069 $2,780 $5,467
Per share amount $0.42 $0.50 $0.94

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The Company leases equipment, automobiles ancedHiglities under various operating leases. Theréuminimum rental commitments as
December 31, 2005, for non-cancelable leases dmlass (in thousands):

2006 $1,826
2007 1,634
2008 1,480
2009 721
2010 112
Thereafter -
$5,773

Rental expense for operating leases was $1,54480667,000 and $1,905,000 for the years ended rbleee 31, 2003, 2004 and 2(
respectively.

In 2004, DXP and DXP's vendor of fiberglass reinéat pipe were sued in Louisiana by a major enemygpany regarding the failure
Bondstrand PSX JFC pipe, a recently introduced typdiberglass reinforced pipe which had been iltestaon four energy producti
platforms. Plaintiff alleges negligence, breacltaftract, warranty and that damages exceed $2bmilDXP believes the failures were cat
by the failure of the pipe itself and not by workrformed by DXP. DXP intends to vigorously defehdde claims. DXP's insurance carrier
agreed, under a reservation of rights to deny @merto provide a defense against these claims.

In 2003, DXP was notified that it had been suedarious state courts in Nueces County, Texas. Tfig allege personal injury resulting fr
products containing asbestos allegedly sold byGbmpany. The suits do not specify products or thiesithe Company allegedly sold
products. Discovery is in the very early stageghmse suits. Two of the Company's insurance carrigrder a reservation of rights to d
coverage, are paying legal fees for the Compamsfende against the claims. One of these carriehie ypaying the Company's asbe:



defense costs, has filed a suit asking the coorta fudgment as to whether or not the carrieraiglé for the asbestos claims. The Com
intends to vigorously defend the Company's claincfiverage. The plaintiffs' attorney has agreeskttie all twelve suits for a nominal amc
to be paid by the Company's insurance carriers.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS:

The Company offers a 401(k) plan which is eligitdesubstantially all employees. The Company hastedeto match employee contribution
a rate of 50 percent up to 4 percent of salaryrddfeThe Company contributed $297,000, $298,00@, $325,000 to the 401(k) plan in
years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 ctasp.

11. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Prior to 2002, the Board of Directors of the Compéad approved the Company making advances and lmathe CEO. During 2001 t
advances and loans to the CEO were consolidatedlirge notes receivable, each bearing inter&sB@tpercent per annum and due Dece
30, 2010. Accrued interest is due annually. On Mat, 2004, DXP exchanged two of the notes rec&vabm the CEO, with a value
$338,591 including accrued interest, for 80,619 ehaf DXP's common stock held by three trustgtierbenefit of Mr. Little's children. T
shares were valued at $4.20 per share, the closamget price of the common stock on March 31, 200« balance of the remaining note
$880,000 and $840,000 at December 31, 2004 and, 28§3ectively. The note is secured by 677,26 7eshaf the Company's common st
The note receivable is reflected as a reducticshafeholders' equity. The note has not been mddifi@mended since 2001.

12. SEGMENT DATA:

The MRO segment is engaged in providing maintenanepair and operating products, equipment andgiated services, includi
engineering expertise and logistics capabilitiesindustrial customers. The Company provides a watege of MRO products in the flt
handling equipment, bearing, power transmissionipggent, general mill, safety supply and electripabducts categories. The Electr
Contractor segment sells a broad range of elettpicaducts, such as wire conduit, wiring devicdgceical fittings and boxes, signali
devices, heaters, tools, switch gear, lighting,damape, lugs, wire nuts, batteries, fans andsfuseelectrical contractors. The Company b
offering electrical products to electrical conti@st following its acquisition of the assets of dectrical supply business in 1998. All busir
segments operate in the United States.

The high degree of integration of the Company'satpmns necessitates the use of a substantial nuofiladlocations and apportionments in
determination of business segment information.sSate shown net of intersegment eliminations.

Financial information relating to the Company'sraegts is as follows:

B Electrical B
MRO B Contractor B Total
(in Thousands)

2003 B B
Sales $ 148,206 B $2,477 B $ 150,683
Operating income 4,210 B 99 B 4,309
Income (loss) before tax 3,265 (68) 3,197
Identifiable assets 46,370 B 2,005 B 48,375
Capital expenditures 406 B 13 B 419
Depreciation and amortization 1,029 B 29 B 1,058
Interest expense 1,010 B 167 B 1,177

1 1



2004

Sales $ 158,191 B $2,394 B $ 160,585
Operating income 4,941 268 5,209
Income before tax 4,271 B 113 B 4,384
Identifiable assets 46,183 2,100 48,283
Capital expenditures 1,859 B 7 B 1,866
Depreciation and amortization 961 31 992
Interest expense 774 B 150 B 924
2005 B B

Sales $ 182,979 $ 2,385 $ 185,364
Operating income 9,097 B 307 [ 9,404
Income before tax 8,452 B 163 B 8,615
Identifiable assets 71,321 1,599 72,920
Capital expenditures 572 B - B 572
Depreciation and amortization 973 17 990
Interest expense 856 B 144 B 1,000

13. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial information for fesars ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 afi@ss:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter B Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in millions, except per share amounts)
2003 B
Sales $375 $37.7 $40.4 $35.1
Gross profit 9.5 B 9.5 10.3 9.2
Net income 0.5 0.4 0.7 0.5




Earnings per share - diluted 0.10 0.10 0.13 0.09
2004 B

Sales $37.9 B $42.1 B $42.9 B $37.7
Gross profit 9.6 B 10.1 9.9 9.8
Net income 0.7 B 0.7 B 0.7 B 0.6
Earnings per share - diluted 0.12 B 0.13 0.13 0.12
2005 B

Sales $41.8 B $45.5 B $43.4 B $54.7
Gross profit 11.0 B 12.2 115 15.0
Net income 0.8 B 15 B 1.1 B 21
Earnings per share - diluted 0.15 B 0.26 0.18 0.36

The sum of the individual quarterly earnings pearshamounts may not agree with yead&te earnings per share as each quarter's congm
is based on the weighted average number of shatetanding during the quarter, the weighted avestgek price during the quarter and
dilutive effects of the convertible preferred stacleach quarter.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéienting and Financial Disclosure
None.
ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Anrieaport on Form 1@, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures (as defin
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 18dbe promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act984) was evaluated by our management witt
participation of our President and Chief Executdféicer, David R. Little (principal executive offic), and our Senior Vice President and C
Financial Officer, Mac McConnell (principal finardiofficer). Messrs. Little and McConnell have clutted that our disclosure controls .
procedures are effective, as of the end of theodetbvered by this Annual Report on FormK,0to help ensure that information we
required to disclose in reports that we file witle ISEC is accumulated and communicated to managemenecorded, processed, summal
and reported within the time periods prescribedhgySEC.

There were no changes in our internal control divemncial reporting that occurred during our lastél quarter (the quarter ended Decer
31, 2005) that have materially affected, or arsoeably likely to materially affect, our internaindrol over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information
None

PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item is incorpaty reference from the information in our defirdtproxy statement for the 2006 Ann
Meeting of Shareholders that we will file with ts&C within 120 days of the end of the fiscal yeawhich this report relates (the "Prc



Statement").

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorpagby reference from the information in our Proxst&ment.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners atnnagement

The information required by this item is incorpaeby reference from the information in our Proxst&ment.
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorpagby reference from the information in our Proxst&ment.
ITEM 14. Principal Auditor Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorpagby reference from the information in our Proxst&ment.

PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Documents included in this report:
1. Financial Statements (included under Item 8):

DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries: Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm 17
Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets 18
Consolidated Statements of Income 19
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity 20
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 21
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 22

2. Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.

All other schedules have been omitted since theired information is not significant or is includadthe Consolidated
Financial Statements or notes thereto or is nolicape.

3. Exhibits:
The following exhibits are filed herewith or areamporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfieith the SEC.
Exhibit

No. Description



3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amen(@embrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Reagists Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-61953), filgtl the Commission on August 20, 1998).

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference Exhibit &1 2He Registrant's Registration Statement on Fe#r(Beg. No. 333-10021),
filed with the Commission on August 12, 1996).

4.1 Form of Common Stock certificate (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant'siRegtion Statement on
Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-61953), filed with the Corssion on August 20, 1998).

4.2 See Exhibit 3.1 for provisions of the Compamestated Articles of Incorporation, as amendefinidg the rights of securi
holders.

4.3 Exhibit 3.2 for provisions of the Company's 8yk defining the rights of security holders.

+10.1 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 Employee StockigdpPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1thlthe Registran
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyigetended June 30, 1999).

+10.2 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 N&mployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference to Exhibit 10.2 to 1
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30, 1999).

+10.3 DXP Enterprises, Inc. Long Term IncentivenRkas amended (incorporated by reference to ExhiBito the Registran
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 3358}, filed with the Commission on August 20, 1998)

+10.4 Amended and Restated Stock Option Agreenaeticeffective as of March 31, 1996, between SER®@Qstries, Inc. ar
David R. Little (incorporated by reference to thegistrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Rkeg 33310021), file
with the Commission on August 12, 1996).

+10.5 Promissory Note dated December 31, 2001 énatfgregate principal amount of $915,974.00, mad®dwid R. Little
payable to DXP Enterprises, Inc. (incorporated défgnence to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's AnrReport on Form 16 for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).

+10.6 Amendment No. One to DXP Enterprises, Incndmployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference t
Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Annual Report @nrfr 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,3200

10.7 Credit Agreement by and among DXP Enterprises, as Borrower, and Wells Fargo Bank, as Bdaked as of August 2,
2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. R&gistrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed witie Commission on
August 4, 2005).

+10.8 Employment Agreement dated effective as ofudey 1, 2004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. andiD®&. Little
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registrantss Annual Report on Form Kder the fiscal year ended Decem
31, 2003).

+10.9 Employment Agreement dated effective as afedd, 2004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and MaxCdhnel
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thegRtrant;s Quarterly Report on Form QOfor the quarterly period enc
March 31, 2004.).

+10.10 Amendment No. One to DXP Enterprises, I8Q91Employee Stock Option Plan (incorporated bgnexice to Exhib
10.10 to the Registrant's Annual Report on ForniK1or the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004).

+10.11 Summary Description of Director Compensafionorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Begistrant's Annu
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ddoen31, 2004).

+10.12 Summary Description of Executive Officer £aBonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit12 to th
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for thedlsyear ended December 31, 2004).

+10.13 Amendment No. Two to DXP Enterprises, InonMEmployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgddéference t
Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant's Annual Reporfanm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30420

*+10.14 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005 Restricted StB&«.

*21.1 Subsidiaries of the Compar



*23.1 Consent from Hein & Associates LLP, IndepertdRegistered Public Accounting Firm.

*31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pwant to Rule 13a-14(a) and rule 1bdi@) of the Securities Exchange Act
amended.

*31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pwrant to Rule 13a-14(a) and rule 154a) of the Securities Exchange Act
amended.

*32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer ar@hief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1386,adopted pursuant
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibits designated by the symbol * are filed witiis Annual Report on Form 1K- All exhibits not so designated are incorporatsy
reference to a prior filing with the SEC as indezht

+ Indicates a management contract or compensaltéongp arrangement.

The Company undertakes to furnish to any sharehaldeequesting a copy of any of the exhibits fe #knnual Report on Form 1K-upor
payment to the Company of the reasonable costsreatby the Company in furnishing any such exhibit.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM'S
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing stedgdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@Wnited States), the consolida
financial statements of DXP Enterprises, Inc. antds&liaries included in this Form X0and have issued our report thereon dated Feb4
2006. Our audits were made for the purpose of flegnain opinion on the basic financial statementertaks a whole. The financial staten
schedule listed in Item 15 herein (Schedul®aluation and Qualifying Accounts) is the respoiigibof the Company's management an
presented for the purpose of complying with theuBides and Exchange Commission's rules and ipadtof the basic financial stateme
The financial statement schedule has been subjéotibd auditing procedures applied in the audithe basic financial statements and, in
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respewfith the financial data required to be set fortlr#in in relation to the basic financial statem
taken as a whole.

/s/ HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP
HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Houston, Texas

February 24, 2006

SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
DXP ENTERPRISES, INC.
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(in thousands)

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance

Description Beginning Cost and Other Deductions At End




of Year Expenses Accounts of Year

Year ended December 31, 2005
Deducted from assets accounts $1,776 $273 $ 4803 $ 2620 $1,835

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Valuation allowance for deferred $78 $- $- $ 34 $44

tax assets

Year ended December 31, 2004
Deducted from assets accounts $1,420 $ 492 $- $136W $1,776

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Valuation allowance for deferred $219 $- $- $141@ $78

tax assets

Year ended December 31, 2003
Deducted from assets accounts $1,235 $142 $- $ (43)® $1,420

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Valuation allowance for deferred $ 362 $- $- $ 1432 $219

tax assets

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of reedies

(2) Reduction results from expiration or use ofestaet operating loss carryforwards.

(3) Reserve for receivables of acquired business.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. (Registrant)

By: /s/ DAVID R. LITTLE

David R. Little

Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer
Dated: March 9, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of



registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated:
NameTitle Date

/s/ DAVID R. LITTLE Chairman of the Board, President, March 9, 2006

David R. Little Chief Executive Officer and Directo
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ MAC McCONNELL Senior Vice-President/Finance March 9, 2006

Mac McConnell and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)

/s/ CLETUS DAVISDirector March 9, 2006

Cletus Davis

/s/ TIMOTHY P. HALTERDirector March 9, 2006

Timothy P. Halter

/s/ KENNETH H. MILLER Director March 9, 2006

Kenneth H. Miller

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit

No. Description

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amen(@embrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Reagists Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-61953), filgtl the Commission on August 20, 1998).

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference Exhibit &12he Registrant's Registration Statement on Foeh{Beg. No. 333-10021),
filed with the Commission on August 12, 1996).

4.1 Form of Common Stock certificate (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant'siRegtion Statement on
Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-61953), filed with the Corssion on August 20, 1998).

4.2 See Exhibit 3.1 for provisions of the Compaiestated Articles of Incorporation, as amendefinidg the rights of securi
holders.



4.3 See Exhibit 3.2 for provisions of the CompaBytaws defining the rights of security holders.

+10.1 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 Employee StockiddpPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1thithe Registran
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyigetended June 30, 1999).

+10.2 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 1999 N&mployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference to Exhibit 10.2 to 1
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharterly period ended June 30, 1999).

+10.3 DXP Enterprises, Inc. Long Term IncentivenRkas amended (incorporated by reference to ExfiBito the Registran
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 3358}, filed with the Commission on August 20, 1998)

+10.4 Amended and Restated Stock Option Agreenaeticeffective as of March 31, 1996, between SER®@Qstries, Inc. ar
David R. Little (incorporated by reference to thegistrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Rkeg 33310021), file
with the Commission on August 12, 1996).

+10.5 Promissory Note dated December 31, 2001 énatfgregate principal amount of $915,974.00, mad®dwid R. Little
payable to DXP Enterprises, Inc. (incorporated défgnrence to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's AnrRport on Form 16 for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).

+10.6 Amendment No. One to DXP Enterprises, Incndmployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdréference t
Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Annual Report @nrfr 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,3200

10.7 Credit Agreement by and among DXP Enterprises, as Borrower, and Wells Fargo Bank, as Balalted as of August
2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1R@gistrant's Current Report on FornK&iled with the Commission ¢
August 4, 2005).

+10.8 Employment Agreement dated effective as ofudey 1, 2004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. andiD®&. Little
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant's Annual Report on Form K(for the fiscal year ended Decem
31, 2003).

+10.9 Employment Agreement dated effective as afedd, 2004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and MaxCdhnel
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thegRtrant's Quarterly Report on Form QOfor the quarterly period enc
March 31, 2004.).

+10.10 Amendment No. One to DXP Enterprises, I8Q91Employee Stock Option Plan (incorporated bgnexice to Exhib
10.10 to the Registrant's Annual Report on ForniK1or the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004).

+10.11 Summary Description of Director Compensatiogorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Begistrant's Annu
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ddoen31, 2004).

+10.12 Summary Description of Executive Officer €aBonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit12 to th
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for thedisyear ended December 31, 2004).

+10.13 Amendment No. Two to DXP Enterprises, InonfEmployee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporatgdéference t
Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant's Annual Reporfanm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30420

*+10.14 DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005 Restricted StBtdn.
*21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company.
*23.1 Consent from Hein & Associates LLP, IndepertdRegistered Public Accounting Firm.

*31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pwant to Rule 13a-14(a) and rule 154(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
amended.

*31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pwrant to Rule 13a-14(a) and rule 154a) of the Securities Exchange Act
amended.

*32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer ar@hief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1386,adopted pursuant
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 200z



Exhibits designated by the symbol * are filed witlis Annual Report on Form 1- All exhibits not so designated are incorporats
reference to a prior filing with the SEC as indezht

+ Indicates a management contract or compensaltéongp arrangement.

Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

SEPCO Industries, Inc., a Texas Corporation
Pelican States Supply Company, Inc., a Nevada Catipo
DXP Acquisition, Inc., a Nevada corporation (dolmgsiness as Strategic Supply, Inc.)
American MRO, Inc., a Nevada Corporation
Global Pump Service and Supply, LLC, a Texas lichltability company (doing business as Certifieculpgnent Services or CES)
PMI Operating Company, Ltd., a Texas limited parshe
Pump - PMI LLC, a Texas limited liability corporaiti
R. A. Mueller, Inc. an Ohio corporation
Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&GRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation of our regated February 24, 2006 included in this Annugpétt on Form 10-K, into the Company's
previously filed registration statements on Forr@ @ile Nos. 333-123698, 333-61953, 333-92875 @81®877).

/SIHEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 9, 2006

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, David R. Little, the President and Chief ExeeatDfficer of DXP Enterprises, Inc., certify that:

1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10ERXP Enterprises, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not aoiatay untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts . under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in thipoet, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr



us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditong #he audit committee of the registrant's boardikgctors (or persons performi
the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 9, 2006

/s/ David R. Little

David R. Little

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Mac McConnell, the Senior Vice President andeERinancial Officer of DXP Enterprises, Inc., égrthat:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fi0OXP Enterprises, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiortny untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contant procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has material



affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl ghe audit committee of the registrant's boardikctors (or persons performi
the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

A. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a signifiode in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 9, 2006

/s/ Mac McConnell

Mac McConnell
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigffemtr of DXP Enterprises, Inc. (the "Companyigreby certifies that the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31, 2005 (the "Report”) fully complies with tregjuirements of Section 13(a) or 15
(d), as applicable, of the Securities ExchangeoAdi934 and that the information contained in tlep®&t fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results arapons of the Company.

Dated: March 9, 2006
/s/David R. Little
David R. Little

President and Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $plpursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notd&led as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document.

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigffemtr of DXP Enterprises, Inc. (the "Companyigreby certifies that the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31, 2005 (the "Report”) fully complies with tregjuirements of Section 13(a) or 15
(d), as applicable, of the Securities ExchangeoAdi934 and that the information contained in tlep®&t fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results @rapons of the Compan



Dated: March 9, 2006
/s/IMac McConnell
Mac McConnell

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notd&led as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document.
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DXP Enterprises, Inc.
2005 Restricted Stock Plan

ARTICLE 1



Establishment, Purpose, and Duratior

1.1 Establishment. DXP Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporation (mafér referred to as th&ompany"), establishes an equity incer
compensation plan to be known as the 2005 Resiristeck Plan (hereinafter referred to as the "Blaas' set forth in this document.

The Plan permits the grant of Restricted StocktiRésd Stock Units, Performance Shares, Performdhtts and Other StodRased Award:
The Plan is not intended to be a plan that is stiltgethe Employee Retirement Income Security Act%74, as amended ("ERISA"). The F
will be interpreted, construed and administeredsigiant with its status as a plan that is not sulEERISA.

Subject to approval by the Company's shareholtlees?lan will become effective as of July 15, 20 "Effective Date").

1.2 Purpose of the Plan The purpose of the Plan is to provide a meansetyeEmployees, Directors, and Third Party SerfAoeviders of th
Company develop a sense of proprietorship and patsavolvement in the development and financiatcass of the Company, and
encourage them to devote their best efforts tdtisiness of the Company, thereby advancing theeistie of the Company and its sharehols
A further purpose of the Plan is to provide a memsugh which the Company may attract able persorisecome Employees or serve
Directors or Third Party Service Providers of tharany and to provide a means whereby those ingasdupon whom the responsibilities
the successful administration and management ofGbmpany are of importance, can acquire and maing&ck ownership, there
strengthening their concern for the welfare of @menpany.

1.3 Duration of the Plan. Unless sooner terminated as provided hereinPthe shall terminate ten years from the EffectivaeD After th:
Plan is terminated, no Awards may be granted buare previously granted shall remain outstandinacicordance with their applicable te
and conditions and the Plan's terms and conditions.

ARTICLE 2
Definitions

Whenever used in the Plan, the following termsidieale the meanings set forth below, and when thammg is intended, the initial letter
the word shall be capitalized.

2.1 "Affiliate" means any corporation, partnership, limited li#ypiiompany or partnership, association, trust deoentity or organizatic
which, directly or indirectly, controls, is conttedl by, or is under common control with, the Compdfor purposes of the preceding sente
"control (including, with correlative meanings, tteems "controlled by" and "under common contrahit), as used with respect to any entit
organization, shall mean the possession, direatindirectly, of the power (i) to vote more tharftyfi percent (50%) of the securities hay
ordinary voting power for the election of directar$ the controlled entity or organization, or (i) direct or cause the direction of
management and policies of the controlled entitgrganization, whether through the ownership ofngsecurities or by contract or otherwi

2.2 "Annual Award Limit" or"Annual Award Limits" have the meaning set forth in Section 4.3.

2.3 "Award" means, individually or collectively, a grant undhrs Plan of Restricted Stock, Restricted StocktJriPerformance Shar
Performance Units or Other Stock-Based Awardsathease subject to the terms of this Plan.

2.4 "Award Agreement" means either (i) a written agreement entered igtdhe Company and a Participant setting forth #rens an
provisions applicable to an Award granted undes Bian, or (ii) a written statement issued by tlen@any to a Participant describing the te
and provisions of such Award.

2.5 "Beneficial Owner" or "Beneficial Ownership" shall have the meaningrigied to such term in Rule 1®&lof the General Rules &
Regulations under the Exchange Act.

2.6 "Board" or"Board of Directors" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.7 "Change of Control," for all purposes of this Plan, means the occurrefi@ny one or more of the following events follogithe date ¢
which the applicable Award is granted:

(a) a report on Schedule 13D or Schedule 14({f any successor schedule, form or report) steafiled with the Securities a
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Exchange Attlzat report discloses that any person (withinntteaning of Section 13
(d) or Section 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act), ottiean the Company (or one of its subsidiaries)ror amployee benefit pli
sponsored by the Company (or one of its subsidigris the beneficial owner (as that term is defimre Rule 13d3 or an
successor rule or regulation promulgated undeEttthange Act), directly or indirectly, of 20 pert¢@n more of the outstandi
Voting Stock;

(b) any person (within the meaning of Section 18(d¥$ection 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act), othemtithe Company (or one
its subsidiaries) or any employee benefit plan spoed by the Company (or one of its subsidiarigisll purchase securit
pursuant to a tender offer or exchange offer taumegany Voting Stock (or any securities convedibito Voting Stock) an
immediately after consummation of that purchasat, plerson is the beneficial owner (as that terdefined in Rule 12-3 or an



successor rule or regulation promulgated undeEttthange Act), directly or indirectly, of 20 per¢@n more of the outstandi
Voting Stock (such person's beneficial ownershifp¢éodetermined, in the case of rights to acquiréngoStock, pursuant
paragraph (d) of Rule 13d-3 or any successor nutegulation promulgated under the Exchange Act);

(c) the consummation of:

(i) a merger, consolidation or reorganization af thompany with or into any other person if as altes sucl
merger, consolidation or reorganization, 50 perceress of the combined voting power of the tloetstandin
securities of such other person immediately aftethsmerger, consolidation or reorganization arel hielthe
aggregate by the holders of outstanding Voting IStoomediately prior to such merger, consolidatior
reorganization;

(i) any sale, lease, exchange or other transfemlbfor substantially all the assets of the Company it
consolidated subsidiaries to any other person i assult of such sale, lease, exchange or othesfer, 5
percent or less of the combined voting power ofttrenoutstanding securities of such other person imntelg
after such sale, lease, exchange or other traaséeheld in the aggregate by the holders of oud#tgnVoting
Stock immediately prior to such sale, lease, exghan other transfer; or

(i) a transaction immediately after the consumpraiof which any person (within the meaning of S&ctl3(d
or Section 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act) would be beneficial owner (as that term is defined ineRLBd3 ol
any successor rule or regulation promulgated utitkerExchange Act), directly or indirectly, of mottean 5(
percent of the outstanding Voting Stock;

(iv) the stockholders of the Company approve tlssalution of the Company; or

(v) during any period of 12 consecutive months,ititviduals who at the beginning of that perioahstituted th
Board shall cease to constitute a majority of tliarl, unless the election, or the nomination fectbn by th
Company's stockholders, of each director of the @amy first elected during such period was apprdwed vot:
of at least a twdhirds majority of the directors of the Companyrthill in office who were directors of t
Company at the beginning of any such period.

2.8 "Code" means the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asded from time to time.

2.9 "Committee" means the compensation committee of the Board)yppther committee designated by the Board to adteinthis Plan. TF
members of the Committee shall be Nonemployee Birecand Outside Directors appointed from timeitoetby and shall serve at -
discretion of the Board.

2.10 "Company" means DXP Enterprises, Inc., a Texas corporatioth aay successor thereto as provided in ARTICLEBEd®in.

2.11 "Covered Employee"means a Participant who is a "covered employeedefised in section 162(m) of the Code and the legguns
promulgated under section 162(m) of the Code, grsaiccessor statute.

2.12 "Director" means any individual who is a member of the Bodidiectors of the Company.

2.13 "Disability" means a mental or physical disability of the Paréint which, in the opinion of a physician selectgdthe Committee, (
shall prevent the Participant from adequately perfog his services as an Employee, Third Party iSerRProvide or Director and (ii) can
expected to result in death or has lasted or caxpected to last for a continuous period of ns$ llnan 12 months.

2.14 "Effective Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1.
2.15 "Employee” means any employee of the Company, its Affiliatesl/or Subsidiaries.
2.16 "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aadefndm time to time, or any successor act thereto.

2.17 "Extraordinary Items" means (i) extraordinary, unusual, and/or nonreagritems of gain or loss; (ii) gains or losses loa dispositio
of a business; (iii) changes in tax or accountigmufations or laws; or (iv) the effect of a mergeacquisition, all of which must be identifiec
the audited financial statements, including foadispor Management Discussion and Analysis secfitimeoCompany's annual report.

2.18 "Fair Market Value" or "FMV" means on the date in question (a) the closing mfiidhe Stock on that date (or, if there was ne sa
such date, the next preceding date on which thasesuch a sale) on the principal securities exahangwhich the Stock is listed; or (b) if
Stock is not listed on a securities exchange, aouatras determined by the Committee in its solerdigon.

2.19 "Insider" shall mean an individual who is, on the relevariedan officer, Director, or more than ten percdi%) Beneficial Owner 1



any class of the Company's equity securities thategistered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchaxaje as determined by the Boarc
accordance with Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

2.20 "Net Income" means the consolidated net income after taxehéPtan Year, as reported in the Company's anepaltto shareholde
or as otherwise reported to shareholders.

2.21 "Nonemployee Director"means a Director who is not an Employee.

2.22 Other Stock-Based Award"means an equity-based or equi¢yated Award not otherwise described by the teofnthis Plan, grante
pursuant to ARTICLE 8.

2.23 "Outside Director" means a member of the Board who qualifies as asidmutlirector as defined for purposes of sectid(h$ of the
Code.

2.24 "Participant" means any eligible person as set forth in ARTICL& &%hom an Award is granted.

2.25 "Performance-Based Compensationtneans compensation under an Award that satisfeseiuirements of section 162(m) of the C
for deductibility of remuneration paid to Covereshoyees.

2.26 "Performance Measures"means measures as described in ARTICLE 9 on whielpérformance goals are based and which are ag
by the Company's shareholders pursuant to thisiRlarder to qualify Awards as Performance-Baseth@ensation.

2.27 "Performance Period" means the period of time during which the perforogagoals must be met in order to determine theegeg
payout and/or vesting with respect to an Award.

2.28 "Performance Share"means an Award granted to a Participant, as destiibARTICLE 7.
2.29 "Performance Unit" means an Award granted to a Participant, as destibARTICLE 7.

2.30 "Period of Restriction" means the period when Restricted Stock or RedfriSteck Units are subject to a substantial riskoofeiture
(based on the passage of time, the achievemermrfifrmance goals, or upon the occurrence of othents as determined by the Committe:
its discretion), as provided in ARTICLE 6.

2.31 "Person” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term ini®e8(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and used in Sestib3(d) and 14(
thereof, including a "group" as defined in Sectl@{d) thereof.

2.32 "Plan" means the DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005 Restrictedk3atan.
2.33 "Plan Year" means the calendar year

2.34"Restriction Period" means the period of time that a Restricted StodRestricted Unit Award is subject to restrictiorssspecified by tt
Committee pursuant to ARTICLE 6.

2.35 "Restricted Stock" means an Award granted to a Participant pursiteARTICLE 6.

2.36 "Restricted Stock Unit" means an Award granted to a Participant pursuaARBICLE 6, except no Shares are actually awardeihd
Participant on the date of grant.

2.37 "Retire" or "Retirement” means the, in the case of an Employee, the teriomaf the Employee's employment relationship viftk
Company and all Affiliates after attaining the agfe65, and, in the case of a Director, cessatiothefDirector's services as a Director ¢
completing either six full terms or six years of\dee as a Director.

2.38 "Share" means a share of Stock.

2.39 "Stock" means the common stock of the Company, $.01 paewal, in the event that the outstanding sharewfmon stock are lal
changed into or exchanged for a different classtadk or securities of the Company or another aatian, that other stock or security.

2.40 "Subsidiary" means any corporation or other entity, whether ddimeor foreign, in which the Company has or olgaidirectly o
indirectly, a proprietary interest of more thanyfipercent (50%) by reason of stock ownership bentise.

2.41 "Third Party Service Provider" means any consultant, agent, advisor, or indepérerractor who renders services to the Compe
Subsidiary, or an Affiliate that (a) are not in oection with the offer and sale of the Company&ugges in a capital raising transaction,



(b) do not directly or indirectly promote or maiimta market for the Company's securities.

2.42 "Voting Stock" means Shares the holders of which are entitledt® for the election of directors, but excludinga&s entitled to so vc
only upon the occurrence of a contingency unleasdbntingency shall have occurred.

ARTICLE 3
Administration

3.1 General. The Committee shall be responsible for administethe Plan, subject to this Article and the othesvisions of the Plan. T
Committee may employ attorneys, consultants, adeods, agents, and other persons, any of whom raankEmployee, and the Commit
the Company, and its officers and Directors shallebtitled to rely upon the advice, opinions, olugtions of any such persons. All acti
taken and all interpretations and determinationderiay the Committee shall be final and binding uffen Participants, the Company, ant
other interested persons.

3.2 Authority of the Committee . The Committee shall have full and exclusive dionary power to interpret the terms and the intérihe
Plan and any Award Agreement or other agreemedboument ancillary to or in connection with therRl® determine eligibility for Awarc
and to adopt such rules, regulations, forms, insémts, and guidelines for administering the PlanhasCommittee may deem necessal
proper. Such authority shall include, but not In@tied to, selecting Award recipients, establisrafigAward terms and conditions, including
terms and conditions set forth in Award Agreemeats], subject to ARTICLE 14, adopting modificaticared amendments to the Plan or
Award Agreement, including without limitation, attyat are necessary to comply with the laws of thentries and other jurisdictions in wh
the Company, its Affiliates, and/or its Subsidiaraperate.

3.3 Delegation.The Committee may delegate to one or more of itsbegs or to one or more officers of the Compang/@nits Subsidiarie
and Affiliates or to one or more agents or advisarsh administrative duties or powers as it mayrdadvisable, and the Committee or
person to whom it has delegated duties or powerafaesaid may employ one or more persons to readegice with respect to a
responsibility the Committee or such person mayehawder the Plan. The Committee may, by resolutiathorize one or more officers of
Company to do one or both of the following on tlaene basis as can the Committee: (a) designate Fegdoto be recipients of Awar
(b) designate Third Party Service Providers todungpients of Awards; and (c) determine the sizaryf such Awards; provided, however, (i)
Committee shall not delegate such responsibiltieany such officer for Awards granted to an Empkyhat is considered an Insider; (ii)
resolution providing such authorization sets fatie total number of Awards such officer(s) may gramd (iii) the officer(s) shall repc
periodically to the Committee regarding the natmd scope of the Awards granted pursuant to tHedtyt delegated.

ARTICLE 4
Shares Subject to the Plan and Maximum Awards

4.1 Number of Shares Available for Awards. Subject to adjustment as provided in Sectionherein, the maximum number of She
available for issuance to Participants under tlae Rthe "Share Authorization") is three hundredufamd (300,000) shares.

4.2 Share UsageShares covered by an Award shall only be countagsed to the extent they are actually issued. yf Simares subject to
Award are forfeited, expire or otherwise terminafthout issuance of such Shares, or any Awardtieskefor cash or otherwise does not re
in the issuance of all or a portion of the Shardgect to such Award, the Shares shall, to thergxdésuch forfeiture, expiration, terminati
cash settlement or ndssuance, again be available for Awards under thpe. Pf any Shares subject to an Award are withtldhe Compar
for income or employment taxes, the Shares, slwalbacome available for grant under the Plan. Thgimum number of Shares available
issuance under the Plan shall not be reduced lectefny dividends that are reinvested into add@icshares or credited as additional Restr
Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Shard®eoformance Units. The Shares available for issgainder the Plan may be author
and unissued Shares or treasury Shares.

4.3 Annual Award Limits. Unless and until the Committee determines that war8l to a Covered Employee shall not be designeghatify a:
PerformanceBased Compensation, the following limits (each Anriual Award Limit" and, collectively, "Annual AwdrLimits") shall appl
to grants of such Awards under the Plan:

(a) Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units The maximum aggregate grant with respect to AwafdRestricted Stock
Restricted Stock Units in any one Plan Year to amg Participant shall be twenty thousand (20,00@)&s plus the amount
the Participant's unused applicable Annual Awandhit.ifor Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Urats of the close of tl
previous Plan Year.

(b) Performance Units or Performance Shares The maximum aggregate Award of Performance UmitBerformance Shai
that a Participant may receive in any one Plan ébatl be twenty thousand (20,000) Shares, or egutie value of twen
thousand (20,000) Shares determined as of theoflagesting or payout, as applicable, plus the amofithe Participant's unus
applicable Annual Award Limit for Performance UnitsPerformance Shares as of the close of thequs\Wlan Yeal



(c) Other Stock-Based Awards. The maximum aggregate grant with respect to othteck®ased Awards pursuant
Section 8.1 in any one Plan Year to any one Ppatitishall be twenty thousand (20,000) Sharesgualdo the value of twer
thousand (20,000) Shares determined as of theoflasting or payout, as applicable, plus the arhofithe Participant's unus
applicable Annual Award Limit Other Stock-Based Admas of the close of the previous Plan Year.

4.4 Adjustments in Authorized Shares In the event of any corporate event or transadiiecluding, but not limited to, a change in theag&:
of the Company or the capitalization of the Compasych as a merger, consolidation, reorganizatienapitalization, separation, st
dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, split, spineff, or other distribution of stock or property tife Company, combination of Sha
exchange of Shares, dividend in kind, or other ikeange in capital structure or distribution (ottilean normal cash dividends) to sharehol
of the Company, or any similar corporate eventangaction, the Committee, in its sole discretinmgrder to prevent dilution or enlargem
of Participants' rights under the Plan, shall studstor adjust, as applicable, the number and kin8hares that may be issued under the PI
under particular forms of Awards, the number antlkbf Shares subject to outstanding Awards, theuahAward Limits, and other val
determinations applicable to outstanding Awards.

The Committee, in its sole discretion, may also enagpropriate adjustments in the terms of any Awarter the Plan to reflect or relate
such changes or distributions and to modify anyotarms of outstanding Awards, including modifieas of performance goals and char
in the length of Performance Periods. The detertitinaof the Committee as to the foregoing adjustiseif any, shall be conclusive &
binding on Participants under the Plan.

Subject to the provisions of ARTICLE 14, withouteadting the number of Shares reserved or availadteunder, the Committee may authc
the issuance or assumption of benefits under ttda B connection with any merger, consolidationgusition of property or stock,
reorganization upon such terms and conditions @&yt deem appropriate.

ARTICLE 5
Eligibility and Participation
5.1 Eligibility . Individuals eligible to participate in this Plarclude all Employees, Directors, and Third Pargyvi&e Providers.

5.2 Actual Participation . Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Cortegritnay, from time to time, select from all eligilshdividuals, thos
to whom Awards shall be granted and shall determimis sole discretion, the nature of, any arldeams permissible by law, and the amc
of each Award.

ARTICLE 6
Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

6.1 Grant of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock bits . Subject to the terms and provisions of the Rlae Committee, at any time and fr
time to time, may grant Shares of Restricted StacH/or Restricted Stock Units to Participants ishsamounts as the Committee s
determine. Restricted Stock Units shall be sintitaRestricted Stock except that no Shares are lactwarded to the Participant on the dat
grant.

6.2 Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Unit Agrement . Each Restricted Stock and/or Restricted Stock ghaint shall be evidenced by
Award Agreement that shall specify the Period(sReftriction, the number of Shares of RestrictaatiSor the number of Restricted St
Units granted, and such other provisions as ther@ittee shall determine.

6.3 Transferability . Except as provided in this Plan or an Award Agreet, the Shares of Restricted Stock and/or RéstriStock Unit
granted herein may not be sold, transferred, plédassigned, or otherwise alienated or hypotheoat¢itithe end of the applicable Perioc
Restriction established by the Committee and sigecih the Award Agreement (and in the case of iReetl Stock Units until the date
delivery or other payment), or upon earlier sati8ém of any other conditions, as specified by @mnmittee, in its sole discretion, and set f
in the Award Agreement or otherwise at any timehs Committee. All rights with respect to the Riestd Stock and/or Restricted Stock U
granted to a Participant under the Plan shall lzélahle during his or her lifetime only to such ®apant, except as otherwise provided ir
Award Agreement or at any time by the Committee.

6.4 Other Restrictions. The Committee shall impose such other conditamd/or restrictions on any Shares of RestrictedkStw Restricte
Stock Units granted pursuant to the Plan as it dem advisable including, without limitation, a uggment that Participants pay a stipul
purchase price for each Share of Restricted Stoelach Restricted Stock Unit, restrictions baseshupe achievement of specific performe
goals, time-based restrictions on vesting followthg attainment of the performance goals, thmsed restrictions, and/or restrictions u
applicable laws or under the requirements of aogksexchange or market upon which such Sharessted lor traded, or holding requireme
or sale restrictions placed on the Shares by thmpaoy upon vesting of such Restricted Stock orrivéstl Stock Units.

To the extent deemed appropriate by the Committeee Company may retain the certificates represgriihares of Restricted Stock in
Company's possession until such time as all canditand/or restrictions applicable to such Shaags been satisfied or lap:



Except as otherwise provided in this Article, Skad Restricted Stock covered by each RestrictextkSward shall become free
transferable by the Participant after all condisi@md restrictions applicable to such Shares haga batisfied or lapse (including satisfactic
any applicable tax withholding obligations), at ttlese of the Restriction Period, or as soon astjgable thereafter, Restricted Stock U
shall be paid in cash, Shares, or a combinatiotash and Shares as the Committee, in its soleetiisarshall determine; provided, howe'
that, unless expressly provided in an Award Agregnaad the requirements of section 409A of the Cardesatisfied, such payment shal
made no later than 2 1/2 months following the ehthe calendar year in which all conditions andrieson applicable to the Units have b
satisfied or lapse.

6.5 Certificate Legend. In addition to any legends placed on certificgdessuant to Section 6.4, each certificate reptasgrShares ¢
Restricted Stock granted pursuant to the Plan neay & legend such as the following or as otherdétermined by the Committee in its ¢
discretion:

The sale or transfer of Shares of stock representetis certificate, whether voluntary, involuntaor by operation of law, is subject to cer
restrictions on transfer as set forth in the DXReFprises, Inc. 2005 Restricted Stock Plan, arttiénassociated Award Agreement. A cop
the Plan and such Award Agreement may be obtaireed DXP Enterprises, Inc.

6.6 Rights as Stockholder. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee seidorth in a Participant's Award Agreement, te #xter
permitted or required by law, as determined by @mnmittee, Participants holding Shares of Restlic®ock granted hereunder may
granted the right to exercise full voting rightstwiespect to those Shares during the Period dffiBtsn and the right to receive distributic
made with respect to such Shares; provided, howekat any Shares or any other property (other ttesh) distributed as a dividend
otherwise with respect to any Restricted Stockoasttich the restrictions have not yet lapsed sbalsubject to the same restrictions as
Restricted Stock. A Participant shall have no \gtin dividend rights with respect to any Restrickdck Units granted hereunder.

6.7 Termination of Employment. Subject to Section 6.8, each Award Agreement siealforth the extent to which the Participantlshave
the right to retain Restricted Stock and/or RettdcStock Units following termination of the Paipiant's employment with or provision
services to the Company, its Affiliates, and/orStsbsidiaries, as the case may be. Such provisioals be determined in the sole discretio
the Committee, shall be included in the Award Agneat entered into with each Participant, need rairtiform among all Shares of Restric
Stock or Restricted Stock Units issued pursuattiedPlan, and may reflect distinctions based oméhsons for termination.

6.8 Minimum Vesting . Except for certain limited situations (includittte death, Disability or Retirement of the Partiei or a Change
Control), or special circumstances determined leyGommittee (such as the achievement of performebetives) Restricted Stock Awa
or Restricted Stock Units subject solely to congithemployment restrictions of Employees shall hRestriction Period of not less than tl
years from date of grant (but permitting pro ragsting over such time); provided, that the provisiof this Section shall not be applicabl
any grants to new hires to replace forfeited awdris a prior employer, grants of Restricted Statlpayment of Performance Awards
grants to Nonemployee Directors. Subject to thedomg thregrear minimum vesting requirement, the Committee nirayts sole discretic
and subject to the limitations imposed under sact®2(m) of the Code and the regulations thereummdite case of a Restricted Stock Aw
intended to comply with the performanbased exception under section 162(m) of the Codsyewthe forfeiture period and any ot
conditions set forth in any Award Agreement subjectuch terms and conditions as the Committeé¢ dham appropriate.

6.9 Section 83(b) Election The Committee may provide in an Award Agreeméat the Award of Restricted Stock is conditionedmuhe
Participant making or refraining from making ancatien with respect to the Award under section 83(tbdhe Code. If a Participant makes
election pursuant to section 83(b) of the Code eoming a Restricted Stock Award, the Participamtigbe required to file promptly a copy
such election with the Company.

ARTICLE 7
Performance Units/Performance Shares

7.1 Grant of Performance Units/Performance Shares Subject to the terms and provisions of the Pla@,Committee, at any time and fr
time to time, may grant Performance Units and/afdPmance Shares to Participants in such amourdsupon such terms as the Commi
shall determine.

7.2 Value of Performance Units/Performance SharesEach Performance Unit shall have an initial vahet is established by the Commi
at the time of grant. Each Performance Share $faa an initial value equal to the Fair Market \éahf a Share on the date of grant.
Committee shall set performance goals in its digsmmewhich, depending on the extent to which they met, will determine the value anc
number of Performance Units/Performance Sharesnttidie paid out to the Participant.

7.3 Earning of Performance Units/Performance SharesSubject to the terms of this Plan, after the ispple Performance Period has en
the holder of Performance Units/Performance Shafesll be entitled to receive payout on the valuel ammber of Performan
Units/Performance Shares earned by the Participaet the Performance Period, to be determined &metion of the extent to whi
the corresponding performance goals have beenwsthie

7.4 Form and Timing of Payment of Performance Unit§erformance Shares. Payment of earned Performance Units/Performaieses
shall be as determined by the Committee and aspeé@t! in the Award Agreement. Subject to the tesfrtke Plan, the Committee, in its <



discretion, may pay earned Performance Units/Padace Shares in the form of cash or in Sharesn(ardombination thereof) equal to
value of the earned Performance Units/PerformaheeeS at the close of the applicable Performanded?er as soon as practicable after
end of the Performance Period; provided, howevet, tunless expressly provided in an Award Agrednaei the requirements of secl
409A of the Code are satisfied, such payment &leathade no later than 2 1/2 months following the: @fithe calendar year which contains
close of the applicable Performance Period. Anyr&hanay be granted subject to any restrictions ddeappropriate by the Committee.
determination of the Committee with respect tofthren of payout of such Awards shall be set forthia Award Agreement pertaining to
grant of the Award.

7.5 Termination of Employment. Each Award Agreement shall set forth the extentvhich the Participant shall have the right tcair
Performance Units and/or Performance Shares fafigwermination of the Participant's employment wath provision of services to t
Company, its Affiliates, and/or its Subsidiaries,the case may be. Such provisions shall be detedhin the sole discretion of the Commit
shall be included in the Award Agreement entereéd with each Participant, need not be uniform amalhd\wards of Performance Units
Performance Shares issued pursuant to the Plamandeflect distinctions based on the reasongefonination.

7.6 Nontransferability . Except as otherwise provided in a Participantga/l Agreement or otherwise determined at any tbyethe
Committee, Performance Units/Performance Shares moaye sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, leraise alienated or hypotheca
other than by will or by the laws of descent anstribution. Further, except as otherwise providedxiParticipant's Award Agreement
otherwise determined at any time by the CommitéeBarticipant's rights under the Plan shall becisaible during his or her lifetime only
such Participant.

ARTICLE 8
Other Stock-Based Awards

8.1 Other Stock-Based Awards The Committee may grant other types of equityedasr equityrelated Awards not otherwise describer
the terms of this Plan (including the grant or offer sale of unrestricted Shares) in such amoantssubject to such terms and condition
the Committee shall determine. Such Awards may lievohe transfer of actual Shares to Participantspayment in cash or otherwise
amounts based on the value of Shares and may &alithout limitation, Awards designed to complthwor take advantage of the applic:
local laws of jurisdictions other than the UnitetatSs.

8.2 Value of Other Stock-Based Awards Each Other StocBased Award shall be expressed in terms of Sharesits based on Shares
determined by the Committee. The Committee maybéstaperformance goals in its discretion. If then@nittee exercises its discretior
establish performance goals, the number Other SBasled Awards that will be paid out to the Partioipaill depend on the extent to wh
the performance goals are met.

8.3 Payment of Other Stock-Based AwardsPayment, if any, with respect to an Other StBelked Award shall be made in accordance
the terms of the Award, in cash or Shares as thmmlitiee determines; provided, however, that, unegzressly provided in an Awe
Agreement and the requirements of section 409AefCode are satisfied, no later than 2 1/2 morahewing the end of the calendar yea
which any restrictions lapse or performance goadsmet.

8.4 Termination of Employment. Subject to Section 8.5, the Committee shall deitee the extent to which the Participant shall hidaeerigh
to receive Other StocBased Awards following termination of the Participa employment with or provision of services te thompany, it
Affiliates, and/or its Subsidiaries, as the caseyrha. Such provisions shall be determined in the siiscretion of the Committee, st
provisions may be included in an agreement entetedvith each Participant, but need not be unifammong all Awards of Other Sto&ase!
Awards issued pursuant to the Plan, and may rafistinctions based on the reasons for termination.

8.5 Minimum Vesting . Except for certain limited situations (includitige death, Disability or Retirement of the Pari@eipor a Change
Control), Other Stock Unit Awards subject solelyctmtinued employment restrictions of employeethefCompany or any Subsidiary shal
subject to restrictions imposed by the Committeeafperiod of not less than three years from dagrant (but permitting pro rata vesting o
such time); provided, that such restrictions shatlbe applicable to any grants of Other Stock Bmitirds in payment of Performance Awar

8.6 Nontransferability . Except as otherwise determined by the CommitieeQther StoclBased Awards may be sold, transferred, plec
assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypothecatdbr aghan by will or by the laws of descent andriistion. Further, except as otherw
provided by the Committee, a Participant's rightslar the Plan, if exercisable, shall be exercisabieng his or her lifetime only by su
Participant. With respect to those Other StBelsed Awards, if any, that are permitted to besfieimed to another person, references in the
to exercise or payment of such Awards by or toRhaeticipant shall be deemed to include, as detexthby the Committee, the Participa
permitted transferee.

ARTICLE 9
Performance Measures

9.1 Performance MeasuresUnless and until the Committee proposes for shddeh@ote and the shareholders approve a chanie igener:



Performance Measures set forth in this Article, peeformance goals upon which the payment or vgsifran Award to a Covered Emplo
that is intended to qualify as Performance-Baseah@@msation shall be limited to the following Pemfi@nce Measures:

(a) Net earnings or net income (before or afteesx

(b) Earnings per share;

(c) Net sales growth;

(d) Net operating profit;

(e) Return measures (including, but not limitedréturn on assets, capital, equity, or sales);

(f) Cash flow (including, but not limited to, opérey cash flow, free cash flow, and cash f
return on capital);

(g) Earnings before or after taxes, interest, dgaten, and/or amortization;

(h) Gross or operating margins;

(i) Productivity ratios;

() Share price (including, but not limited to, gritln measures and total shareholder return);
(k) Expense targets;

() Margins;

(m) Operating efficiency;

(n) Market share; and

(o) Customer satisfaction.

Any Performance Measure(s) may be used to measeneerformance of the Company, Subsidiary, andfilisgke as a whole or any busint
unit of the Company, Subsidiary, and/or Affiliate any combination thereof, as the Committee mayrdeppropriate, or any of the abi
Performance Measures as compared to the perforntdrecgroup of comparator companies, or publishespecial index that the Committ
in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, or tlen@any may select Performance Measure (j) aboveoagpared to various stock mat
indices. The Committee also has the authority twide for accelerated vesting of any Award basedhenachievement of performance g
pursuant to the Performance Measures specifidusnitticle.

9.2 Evaluation of Performance.The Committee may provide in any such Award that evaluation of performance may include or exc
any of the following events that occurs during afétenance Period: (a) asset wrilewns, (b) litigation or claim judgments or settkmts
(c) the effect of changes in tax laws, accountingagiples, or other laws or provisions affectingpoeted results, (d) any reorganization
restructuring programs, (e) extraordinary nonreogrritems as described in Accounting Principles mdo®pinion No. 30 and/or

management's discussion and analysis of finanoiadition and results of operations appearing inGboenpany's annual report to sharehol
for the applicable year, (f) acquisitions or divieses, and (g) foreign exchange gains and loseeghe extent such inclusions or exclus
affect Awards to Covered Employees, they shall besqribed in a form that meets the requirementseation 162(m) of the Code

deductibility.

9.3 Adjustment of Performance-Based Compensatiomwards that are designed to qualify as Performd@ased Compensation, and that
held by Covered Employees, may not be adjusted ihwéne Committee shall retain the discretion tusidsuch Awards downward, either
a formula or discretionary basis or any combingtamthe Committee determines.

9.4 Committee Discretion.In the event that applicable tax and/or securia@ss change to permit Committee discretion to ghergovernin
Performance Measures without obtaining sharehadproval of such changes, the Committee shall kaleediscretion to make such char
without obtaining shareholder approval. In additionthe event that the Committee determines thatddvisable to grant Awards that shall
qualify as PerformancBased Compensation, the Committee may make sucisgréthout satisfying the requirements of sectié2(m) of th
Code and base vesting on Performance Measurestbthrethose set forth in Section 9.1.

ARTICLE 10



Nonemployee Director Awards

10.1 Automatic Nonemployee Director Awards. Subject to the terms and provisions of the P&ach NonEmployee Director who is
director of the Company on any July 1 while thisuPis in effect shall be granted on each such luthiree thousand (3,000) Share
Restricted Stock.

10.2 Lapse of Restrictions

(a) Generally. On the June 30 following the datéhefgrant of a Restricted Stock Award to a Nonaygé Director pursuant
Section 10.1, the restrictions on 100 percent ef$hares issued under the Award shall lapse swth#tte anniversary of t
date of grant, the Shares subject to the Award bhal00% vested.

(b) Cessation of Service. If a Nonemployee Directeases to be a director of the Company for angoreather than his des
Disability or Retirement, any Restricted Stock Adiagranted to such Nonemployee Director pursuardotion 10.1 that
thenrestricted shall be immediately forfeited. If th@iémployee Director ceases to be a director ofCbmpany due to
death, Disability or Retirement, all restrictions lois Restricted Stock Awards granted pursuanetdi& 10.1 shall immediate
lapse.

ARTICLE 11
Beneficiary Designation

Each Participant under the Plan may, from timénb@t name any beneficiary or beneficiaries (who f@yamed contingently or successiv
to whom any benefit under the Plan is to be paiddse of his or her death before he or she recaimgsor all of such benefit. Each s
designation shall revoke all prior designationdtyy same Participant, shall be in a form prescribethe Committee, and will be effective o
when filed by the Participant in writing with theo@pany during the Participant's lifetime. In thesedice of any such designation, ben
remaining unpaid at the Participant's death skepdid to the Participant's estate.

ARTICLE 12
Rights of Participants

12.1 Employment. Nothing in the Plan or an Award Agreement shakifere with or limit in any way the right of tl@mpany, its Affiliates
and/or its Subsidiaries, to terminate any Partitiigaemployment or service on the Board or to thenfany at any time or for any reason
prohibited by law, nor confer upon any Participany right to continue his or her employment or &enas a Director or Third Party Sen
Provider for any specified period of time.

Neither an Award nor any benefits arising undes #ilian shall constitute an employment contract withCompany, its Affiliates, and/or
Subsidiaries and, accordingly, subject to ARTICLESNd 14, this Plan and the benefits hereunderbadgrminated at any time in the sole
exclusive discretion of the Committee without giyirise to any liability on the part of the Compaity Affiliates, and/or its Subsidiaries.

12.2 Patrticipation . No individual shall have the right to be selectedeceive an Award under this Plan, or, havingrbso selected, to
selected to receive a future Award.

12.3 Rights as a Shareholder Except as otherwise provided herein, a Parti¢ighall have none of the rights of a shareholdén wéspect t
Shares covered by any Award until the Participatines the record holder of such Shares.

ARTICLE 13
Change of Control

13.1 Change of Control of the Company. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, snietherwise specifically prohibited un
applicable laws or by the rules and regulationsan§ governing governmental agencies or nationalrgexs exchanges, or unless
Committee shall determine otherwise in the Awarde&gnent:

(a) Any Restriction Period and restrictions imposedRestricted Stock or Restricted Stock Unitsidhpke;

(b) the target payout opportunities attainable wradleoutstanding Awards of performar-based Restricted Stock, performe-



based Restricted Stock Units, Performance Unitd,Rerformance Shares, shall be deemed to havefbieearned based
targeted performance being attained as of theteféedate of the Change of Control;

(c) the vesting of all Awards denominated in Shatesl be accelerated as of the effective datbefthange of Control; and

A. to the extent permitted under Section 409A of theé&and unless otherwise provided in an Award Agesd, all
Awards shall be paid out to Participants withint$h{30) days following the effective date of theahge of
Control; provided that the Committee has the aithar its sole discretion to pay all or any portiof the value ¢
any Shares distributable in cash.

ARTICLE 14
Amendment, Modification, Suspension, and Terminatio

14.1 Amendment, Modification, Suspension, and Termation . Subject to Section 14.3, the Committee may, gttiame and from time 1
time, alter, amend, modify, suspend, or terminia¢eRlan and any Award Agreement in whole or in;gadvided, however, that no amendn
of the Plan shall be made without shareholder aggpibshareholder approval is required by law,ulagjon, or stock exchange rule.

14.2 Adjustment of Awards Upon the Occurrence of Q#ain Unusual or Nonrecurring Events . The Committee may make adjustmen
the terms and conditions of, and the criteria idelliin, Awards in recognition of unusual or nonreiog events (including, without limitatic
the events described in Section 4.4 hereof) affgdtie Company or the financial statements of tbm@any or of changes in applicable le
regulations, or accounting principles, wheneverGloenmittee determines that such adjustments amoppate in order to prevent uninten:
dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potdrenefits intended to be made available undePtha. The determination of the Committe
to the foregoing adjustments, if any, shall be dasige and binding on Participants under the Plan.

3. Awards Previously Granted. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plaritte contrary, no termination, amendment,
suspension, or modification of the Plan or an Awagdeement shall adversely affect in any materiay\@ny Award previously
granted under the Plan, without the written consétiie Participant holding such Award.

ARTICLE 15
Withholding

15.1 Tax Withholding . The Company shall have the power and the righdeduct or withhold, or require a Participant toniteto the
Company, the minimum statutory amount to satisfyefal, state, and local taxes, domestic or foreigquired by law or regulation to
withheld with respect to any taxable event arisisaa result of this Plan.

15.2 Share Withholding. With respect to withholding required upon theskapf restrictions on Restricted Stock and Restli@tock Units,
upon the achievement of performance goals relatd@etformance Shares, or any other taxable evesih@ras a result of an Award grar
hereunder, Participants may elect, subject to pgpaval of the Committee, to satisfy the withholglirequirement, in whole or in part,
having the Companwithhold Shares having a Fair Market Value on tla¢edthe tax is to be determined equal to, but notenthan, th
minimum statutory total tax that could be imposadtee transaction. All such elections shall bevioable, made in writing, and signed by
Participant, and shall be subject to any restmior limitations that the Committee, in its solscdetion, deems appropriate. In the eve
Participant exercises an election under this Seditd only satisfies the minimum statutory withtwddrequirement imposed on the reley
transaction in part, the Company shall have thegoamd the right to deduct or withhold, or requrBarticipant to remit to the Company,
remaining amount of the required minimum statuteithholding amount.

ARTICLE 16
Successors

All obligations of the Company under the Plan wiéspect to Awards granted hereunder shall be bjndinany successor to the Comp.
whether the existence of such successor is th#t dsaudirect or indirect purchase, merger, coitlsdion, or otherwise, of all or substantially
of the business and/or assets of the Company.

ARTICLE 17
General Provisions

17.1 Compliance with Section 409A of the Cod&his Plan is intended to comply and shall be adsténéd in a manner that is intende



comply with Section 409A of the Code and shall bestrued and interpreted in accordance with sugminTo the extent that an Award or
payment, settlement or deferral thereof is suliesiection 409A of the Code, the Award shall bentgd, paid, settled or deferred in a ma
that will comply with section 409A of the Code, limding regulations or other guidance issued withpeet thereto, except as othen
determined by the Committee. Any provision of tRlan that would cause the grant of an Award omidagment, settlement or deferral the
to fail to satisfy section 409A of the Code shaldmended to comply with section 409A of the Cada dmely basis, which may be made «
retroactive basis, in accordance with regulatiors @ther guidance issued under section 409A o€ide.

17.2 Forfeiture Events.

(a) The Committee may specify in an Award Agreentbat the Participant's rights, payments, and bisneith respect to ¢
Award shall be subject to reduction, cancellatifmfeiture, or recoupment upon the occurrence ofaie specified events,
addition to any otherwise applicable vesting offgrenance conditions of an Award. Such events majude, but shall not |
limited to, termination of employment for causemation of the Participant's provision of sergde the Company, Affiliat
and/or Subsidiary, violation of material Companyfilfate, and/or Subsidiary policies, breach of nompetition, confidentialit
or other restrictive covenants that may apply te Farticipant, or other conduct by the Participdat is detrimental to tl
business or reputation of the Company, its Affdgtand/or its Subsidiaries.

(b) If the Company is required to prepare an actingrrestatement due to the material noncompliaofcdie Company, as
result of misconduct, with any financial reportiregiuirement under the securities laws, or if theiétpant is one of the persc
subject to automatic forfeiture under Section 3Dthe Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, the Participant shall reimbutise Compan
the amount of any payment in settlement of an Aveathed or accrued during the twelmenth period following the first pub
issuance or filing with the United States Secuwsitend Exchange Commission (whichever just occurddhe financie
document embodying such financial reporting requéest.

17.3 Legend. The certificates for Shares may include any ldgehich the Committee deems appropriate to reflegtrestrictions on trans
of such Shares.

17.4 Gender and Number. Except where otherwise indicated by the conteny, masculine term used herein also shall inclbdeféminine
the plural shall include the singular, and the glagshall include the plural.

17.5 Severability. In the event any provision of the Plan shall balliéggal or invalid for any reason, the illegality invalidity shall not affes
the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan gleatlonstrued and enforced as if the illegal oalivprovision had not been included.

17.6 Requirements of Law The granting of Awards and the issuance of Shamdsnthe Plan shall be subject to all applicables|aules, an
regulations, and to such approvals by any govertahagencies or national securities exchanges gmaequired.

17.7 Delivery of Title. The Company shall have no obligation to issuéediver evidence of title for Shares issued unterRlan prior to:
A. Obtaining any approvals from governmental agentiasthe Company determines are necessary or &djsac

(b) Completion of any registration or other qualiion of the Shares under any applicable nation&breign law or ruling ¢
any governmental body that the Company determmég thecessary or advisable.

17.8 Inability to Obtain Authority . The inability of the Company to obtain authoritprit any regulatory body having jurisdiction, wk
authority is deemed by the Company's counsel tmdmessary to the lawful issuance and sale of amyeShhereunder, shall relieve
Company of any liability in respect of the failueissue or sell such Shares as to which suchsiguiuthority shall not have been obtained.

17.9 Investment RepresentationsThe Committee may require any person receiving &hpursuant to an Award under this Plan to rept
and warrant in writing that the person is acquiting Shares for investment and without any preiseemtion to sell or distribute such Shares.

17.10 Employees Based Outside of the United StateNotwithstanding any provision of the Plan to twatrary, in order to comply with t
laws in other countries in which the Company, itffiliates, and/or its Subsidiaries operate or h&rployees, Directors, or Third Par
Service Provides, the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall htheepower and authority to:

(a) Determine which Affiliates and Subsidiarieslsha covered by the Plan;

(b) Determine which Employees, Directors and/orrdhParty Service Providers outside the United Statee eligible t
participate in the Plan;

(c) Modify the terms and conditions of any Awarauged to Employees, Directsand/or Third Party Service Provideoutside
the United States to comply with applicable forelgws;

(d) Establish subplans and modify exercise proesiand other terms and procedures, to the extefit actions may
necessary or advisable. Any subplans and modificatito Plan terms and procedures established uthdeSection by tr



Committee shall be attached to this Plan docum&appendices; and

(e) Take any action, before or after an Award iglepahat it deems advisable to obtain approvaloonply with any necesse
local government regulatory exemptions or approvals

Notwithstanding the above, the Committee may nke @ny actions hereunder, and no Awards shall aeted, that would violate applica
law.

17.11 Uncertificated Shares To the extent that the Plan provides for issuasfceertificates to reflect the transfer of Sharbe, transfer ¢
such Shares may be effected on a noncertificateid,lta the extent not prohibited by applicable avthe rules of any stock exchange.

17.12 Unfunded Plan. Participants shall have no right, title, or intéreatsoever in or to any investments that the Gaomgpand/or it
Subsidiaries, and/or Affiliates may make to aithitmeeting its obligations under the Plan. Nothimgntained in the Plan, and no action te
pursuant to its provisions, shall create or be taed to create a trust of any kind, or a fiducieslationship between the Company and
Participant, beneficiary, legal representativeany other person. To the extent that any personi@xja right to receive payments from
Company, and/or its Subsidiaries, and/or Affiliatesler the Plan, such right shall be no greater tha right of an unsecured general cre
of the Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliate, las tase may be. All payments to be made hereuhd#b® paid from the general funds of
Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliate, as the aasg be and no special or separate fund shall tableshed and no segregation of assets
be made to assure payment of such amounts excegpesssly set forth in the Plan.

17.13 No Fractional Shares No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivgrecsuant to the Plan or any Award. The Committesi|
determine whether cash, Awards, or other propdra}l e issued or paid in lieu of fractional Shasesvhether such fractional Shares or
rights thereto shall be forfeited or otherwise @hated.

17.14 Retirement and Welfare Plans Neither Awards made under the Plan nor Sharessir paid pursuant to such Awards, except pur
to Covered Employee Annual Incentive Awards, mayinmuded as "compensation” for purposes of conmguthe benefits payable to ¢
Participant under the Company's or any Subsidiany'Affiliate's retirement plans (both qualifieddanonqualified) or welfare benefit pla
unless such other plan expressly provides that socipensation shall be taken into account in comgua participant's benefit.

17.15 Nonexclusivity of the Plan The adoption of this Plan shall not be constrasdreating any limitations on the power of the lBoa
Committee to adopt such other compensation arraegenas it may deem desirable for any Participant.

17.16 No Constraint on Corporate Action.Nothing in this Plan shall be construed to: (i)itinmpair, or otherwise affect the Company's
Subsidiary's or an Affiliate's right or power to keaadjustments, reclassifications, reorganizationshanges of its capital or business struc
or to merge or consolidate, or dissolve, liquidatd|, or transfer all or any part of its businessssets; or, (i) limit the right or power of
Company or a Subsidiary or an Affiliate to take acyion which such entity deems to be necessaappropriate.

17.17 Governing Law. The Plan and each Award Agreement shall be gedehy the laws of the State of Texas, excluding @myflicts o
choice of law rule or principle that might otherwigefer construction or interpretation of the Plarthe substantive law of another jurisdict
Unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreemeatjpients of an Award under the Plan are deemenibmit to the exclusive jurisdicti
and venue of the federal or state courts of Teteasgsolve any and all issues that may arise oatr a€late to the Plan or any related Aw
Agreement.

17.18 Indemnification.Each person who is or shall have been a membdedBoard, or a Committee appointed by the Boar@noofficer o
the Company to whom authority was delegated in @zowe with ARTICLE 3 shall be indemnified and hie&tmless by the Company aga
and from any loss, cost, liability, or expense thaty be imposed upon or reasonably incurred bydrifrer in connection with or resulting fri
any claim, action, suit, or proceeding to whichoneshe may be a party or in which he or she maybaved by reason of any action takel
failure to act under the Plan and against and faognand all amounts paid by him or her in settlemieereof, with the Company's approval
paid by him or her in satisfaction of any judgmanainy such action, suit, or proceeding against dirher, provided he or she shall give
Company an opportunity, at its own expense, to leaadd defend the same before he or she undertakendle and defend it on his or
own behalf, unless such loss, cost, liability, xpense is a result of his or her own willful misdant or except as expressly provided by sta

The foregoing right of indemnification shall not égclusive of any other rights of indemnificatianvwhich such persons may be entitled u
the Company's Certificate of Incorporation of Bytawas a matter of law, or otherwise, or any polwat the Company may have to indem
them or hold them harmles



